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MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE

THURSDAY, JUNE 18, 1987

U.S. SENATE,
SuscoMMITTEE oN HEALTH OF THE COMMITTEE ON Finance,
Washington, DC.

The hearing was convened, pursuant to notice, at 11:54 a.rr in
room SD-215, Dirksen Senate Office Building, the Honorable
George J. Mitchell (chairman) presiding.

Present: Senators Mitchell, Matsunaga, Chafee, and Duren-
berger.

[The press release announcing the hearing and the opening state-
ment of Senator Heinz follows:]

[Press Release No. H-53]

FiNANCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH To HoLp HEARINGS ON COVERAGE OF
PrescripTION DRUGS AND MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE

WasHINGTON, DC.—Senator George J. Mitchell (D., Maine), Chairman, announced
Thursday that the Subcommittee on Health of the Senate Finance Committee will
hold hearings on coverage of prescription drugs and coverage of mental health serv-
ices under the Medicare program. Chairman Mitchell stated that the purpose of the
hearirgs is to examine the feasibility of various options for including coverage of
these items and services under Medicare.

The principles to be examined with respect to prescription drug coverage include
the nature of t"e coverage (catastrophic or basic), the scope of the coverage (includ-
ing any limits on the types of drugs that might be covered), the use of deductibles,
coinsurance, and other cost sharing, the administration of the benefit, reimburse-
frpent. quality assurance, cost and utilization control, and the financing of the bene-
it.

The principles to be examined with respect to mental health services include the
nature of any changes in coverage (catastrophic or basic), changes in the types of
services that are subject to the current coverage limits, and the financing of any
benfit expansion.

The hearings will be held on Thursday, June 18, 1987 in Room SD-215 of the
Dirksen Senate Qffice Building The hearing on soverage of prescription drugs will
zel%iln at 9:00 A M., and the hearing on mental health services will begin at 11:00
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OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR JOHN HEINZ (R-PA)
FINANCE COMMITTEE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HERLTH HEARING
THURSDAY 18 JUNE 1987

Mr. Chairman, good morning. I want to thank you for calling
this hearing today to look at the issue of broad prescription
drug coverage for older Americans under Medicare. If the One
Hundredth Congress leaves but one legacy, 1t should be the
demonstrated willingness to tackle difflcult problems head on.
No where %is that challenge more vital than in health care.

Providing prescription drug coverage fer America's elderly is a
dilemma not because the need for coversge 1s an issue, but
because of the various costs inherent 1in a solution.

The nee! for coverage is well documented and highly
quantifiable. In 1987, for example, older Americans will spend
over $9 billion on prescription drugs, with millions of aged
individuals paying over $500 annually for medication to treat
chronic illnesses such as arthritis and hypertension. With
drug costs escalating 2 1/2 times faster than other consumer
prices, cost is cited by the elderly as the second most
important reason for not filling a prescription. By what
twisted process of reasoning, Mc¢. Chairman, can we conmend
ourselves for glant strides in combating and controlling
disease with drugs, while denying access to these modern
miracles by reason of cost?

One of my constituents from Pittsburgh is typical of millions
of older indivduals facing large out-of-pocket expenses for
drugs. He wrote that his income from Social Security was
"devastated by the costs of prescription drugs.” His ccsts
averaged $180 per month for the past year and he knows of "many
others whose limited means cre similarly being ravaged.® How
tragic that millions face the cholice of drugs or food and
housing!

But I know the naysayers on a prescription drug benefit point
to at least four reasons to avoid coverage. I would like %o
address each of these briefly.




Some say the drug benefit necessarily encourages
overutilization. I became painfully aware of the e¢motional and
physical agony of senlors suffering drug misuse at a 1983 Aging
88TT%§§SSa“8§”&H§s igsngye two observations to lay before my

Pirst, while overutilization is a problem, we also have
substantlial evidence of drug underutil’~ation because_ of cost.

t Unnecessary hospitalizations, even deatns--certainly «
unwarranted suffering and pain--have been tied to the failure
to take prescribed drugs. 1It's a simpie equation of need:
substract essential living costs from a limited, fixed income

4 and nothing remains for medications. Second, if Medicare
covers drugs, We can better monitor use--and hopefully protect
against bdoth under- and overutilization.

Some say covering drugs will break the already dangerously thin
thread of financial security in the Medicare program. There .s
no question that a drug benefit will be expensive. But
preliminary studies suggest there will be savings to Medicare
to help offset the costs.

A simple, but graphic case in point is the case of Mrs. A and
Mrs. G. Both suffered with terminal cancer, and had
essentially the same treatment regimen. Both were treated in
the Washington metropolitan area. The difference in their care
was that Mre. G received chemotherapy in a local hospital --
because Medicare would pay c1ly in the hospital -- while Mrs. A
was treated in her home under a rrivate insurance plan. The
difference in cost is astonishing: private insurance paid $1100
for Mrs. A's one day therapy, while Medicare paid out $1900 --
$800 more for the same treatment. We must find some way of
taking into account the economic efficiencies that will rasult
when Medicare covers outpatient prescription drugs.

The third argument against prescription drug coverage is that
the benefit will be an administrative nightmare -- if not an
administrative impossibility. Again I would focus the
Committee's attention on the proven to dispel the theoretical.
Eight States now provide an outpatient prescription drug
benefit for low income elderly, and all but two States do so
for Medicaid beneficiaries. The largest of these programs for
the poor, and one often cited as a model program, is the
Pharmaceutical Assistance Contract for the Elderly in
Pennsylvania (PACE). I look forward to hearing a great deal of

~3
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concrete advice from a representative of the PACE program this
morning.

Pinally, the naysayers argue that a prescription drug*benefit
for Medicare will cause prices to ris¢ rapidly and force
Congress to take draconian steps to cut costs, thereby .
inhibiting the ability of the drug manufacturers to perform the
expensive research necessary to find new miracle cures. The
fears of the drug companies were echoed in these very ch~rmbers
more than 20 years ago by physicians who feared that Medicare
would lead to socialized medicine and the demise of medicine as
we know 1t. All I can say 1is that few physicians are arguing
today that we should scrap Medicare, even with our current
cost-containment efforts. I am confident that Medicare
coverage of prescription drugs can contain costs for consumers
while ensuring adequate funds for research.

Mr. Chairman, again I thank you for an opportunity to look at
this critical issue and feel confident we will be able to reach
consensus on a solution.
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Senator MiTCHELL. Good morning. Our purpose in holding this
hearing today is to examine the existing mental health benefits
under the Medicar¢ Program, an examination that is long overdue.

Between three million and five million of our Nation’s elderly
have significant mental health problems. Many more of those over
age 65 are in need of a brief period of counseling when facing a
severe crisis, such as the death of a spouse or being forced to move
from a home in which they have lived for most of their adult lives.

While those Medicare beneficiaries under age 65 who are dis-
abled account for only three million of the approximately 30 mil-
lion beneficiaries, they use a disproportionate share of mental
health benefits under the program. Many of these disabled persons
qualify for Medicare because of chronic mental illnesses, which re-
quire extensive treatment over a long period of time.

Th:> mental health benefit under Medicare has not been exam-
ined carefully in 20 years. During that time there have been many
advances in medical management of mental illness and in forms of
treatment particularly for those with chronic illness. We have a re-
sponsibility to reexamine the existing benefit in light of these
changes and then to work to design a benefit that will better meet
the needs of both elderly and disabled Medicare beneficiaries.

I look forward to the testimony to be presented by the witnesses
today, particularly from the three distinguished members of the
House, and to work with my colleagues on this commiitee and
those in the House to improve the mental health benefit under the
Medicare program.

I am pleased that we are joined today by Senator Durenberger
who served for six years as chairman of this subcommittee and
who was responsible for much of the important legislation now cov-
ering those in Medicare. Senator Durenberger.

Senator DURENBERGER. Mr. Chairman, you know how strongly
feel about the issue. And I appreciate your comments and I won't
add to that in deference to our witnesses who have been waiting
for quite a while.

Senator MircueLL. Thank you, Senator Durenberger.

Senator Chafee?

Senator CHAFEE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I want to say that we are grateful for the three witnesses coming
here today from Congress, and the others, and I am interested in
this subject also. Unfortunately, like everybody else, I seem to have
conflicts and will certainly review the testimony that takes place
here today. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator MircHELL. Thank you, Senator Chafee.

I want to begin by apologizing to our colleagues from the House
for the lengthy delay. As you know, we had a prior hearing on the
prescription drug benefit under Medicare and it, perhaps predict-
ably, ran longer than expected.

We will now be pleased to hear from the three House members,
and we can proceed in any order you like, whatever you decide. Or
you are listed on the agenda: we would be glad to go in that direc-
tion.
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STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS J. DOWNEY, U.S. REPRESENTATIVE
FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Congressman DownNey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I suspect I
look more youthful than my colleagues. I have the advantage of
being senior and we have decided that I would start off.

Senator MitcHELL. You are the oldest.

Congressman DowNEY. I am also the oldest. That is right.
[Laughter.]

Congressman Downgy. Mr. Chairman, let me just say that we
welcome this opportunity. We know the work that you and Senator
Matsunaga have done on this particular issue.

Senator MircHeLL. I'm sorry, Congressman Downey. I apologize
to Senator Matsunaga. I was not aware that he was present in the
changeover from the other hearing. And I wonder if you have a
statement that you would care to make, Senator Matsunaga, an
opening statement.

Senator MaTtsuNaGa. I will hear them first.

Senator MiTcHELL. All right. Fine. My apology to you, Senator
Matsunaga. I was not aware of your presence. Please proceed, Con-
gressman Downey.

Congressman DownNEy. Mr. Chairman, we in the House have
paid a great deal of attention to this issue. And I promise to be
very brief because we know that your schedule is long. For too long
the mental health care needs of the elderly have been simply
unmet. We know that between 15 to 20 percent of older Americans
who are particularly vulnerable to emotional suffering have signifi-
cant mental health problems; however, senior citizens receive only
7 percent of inpatient psychiatric services, 6 percent of community
mental health ser ices, and 2 percent of services delivered in pri-
vate psychiatric offices.

Proper treatment of mental health problems for the elderly have
been severely limited because of the dark-ages approach we have
allowed Medicare to take toward mental health. Our understand-
ing and treatment of mental health disorder have advanced signifi-
cantly since 1965, when we wrote the Medicare legislation, but the
discriminatory limits for both inpatient and outpatient treatment
of mental health problems have never been changed.

I have introduced legislation in each Congress since 1979 that
would eliminate the discriminatory Medicare limits on mental
health care. However, this year we are on the verge of bringing
Medicare into the twentieth century on the mental health ques-
tion. And as you know, both the Ways and Means Committee and
the Energy and Commerce Committees have included significant
changes in the mental health benefit in the catastrophic health
care legislation.

These changes essentially raise the current $£50.00 outpatient
cap for mental health problems. And while I think we ultimately
need to do away with the limits on both inpatient and outpatient
treatment of mer.tai disorders, the changes proposed in the House
will improve access to mental health care for senior citizens.

Let me be frank because time is short. I am here to urge you
that your committee consider the inclusion of improvements in
mental health care benefit in the context of catastrophic health

0
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care legislation. My point is simply that if we put it, or attempt to
put it in reconciliation or in some other legislation, you will have
?ne vehicle and we will have another and that will be a problem
or us.
Let -me say one other thing since I am the newly appointed
acting chairman of the Public Assistance Subcommittee in Ways
N and Means, that we have just marked up a fairly significant and, I
believe, one you will probably be able to support, change in legisla-
tion on public assistance. And we are irncluding that probably in
our reconciliation package. If you were to include that—and it is
my hope, and this outcome will depend on what Senator Moynihan
and others want to do over here—but if we have that issue, plus
this issue, plus revenue, in reconciliation, I think we will make
that train, frankly, much ico large to be pulled through this legis-
lative station.

We need to deal with mezntal health. I don’t think I need to con-
vince either Sparky or you, George, about this. It has got to be
done. And the only way it can be done, in my view, is to put it in
catastrophic and we can work out our differences. Frankly, it is not
as much as I would like, but it seems to be as much as Congress-
man Levin and Congressman Coyne could get in the process.

So, please, do not reconcile it to reconciliation because it will die,
I am afraid, there. Please put it in catastrophic where it belongs.

Senator MircHELL. Thank you very much, Congressman Downey.

Now since we are going by seniority, who is next?

Congressman CoyNE. Congressman Coyne.

Senator MircHELL. Congressman Coyne. All right. In other
xtzor]ds, it is inverse proportion to age than already exists. [Laugh-

r.
Congressman LEVIN. As always, you are correct. [Lavghter.]

, [Th]e prepared written statement of Congressman Downey fol-
ows:
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STATEMENT OF CONGRESSHAN THOMAS J. DOWNEY
BEFORE
SUBCOMMITZEE ON HEALTH

June 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I want to thank you, not
only for holding this hearing today, but for your graciousness in
teceiving this delegation from the other body. We know your time
constraints and promise to be brief.

for too long the mental health care needs of the elderly have
been unmet. We know that between 15 to 20 percant of older
Anecricans, who are particularly vulnerable to erotional suffering,
have significant mental health problems. However, senior citizens
teceive only 7 percent of inpatient psychiatcic services, 6 percent
of community mental health services, and 2 percent of secvices
delivered in private psychiatrists® offices.

RFropetr treatment of mental health prablems for the elderly has
been severely limited because of the "dark-ages® approach we have
allowed Medicare to take toward mental health. Our understanding
and treatment of mental health disorder. has advanced significantly
since 1965, when Congress cnacted Medicare. But the discriminatory
limits for both inpatient and outpatient treatnent of mentsl health

problems have never been changed.




I have 1ntroduced leqislation in each Congress since 1979 that
would eliminate the discriminatory Medicare limits on mental health
care. However, this year we are on the verge of bringing Medicare
into the twentieth century on the mental health question. Aas you
know, hoth the Ways and Means and Energy and Commerce Committees
have included significant changes 1n the mental health benefit in
catastrophic health care legislation. These changes essentially
raise the current $1000 outpatient cap for mental health problems.
While I think we ultimately need to do away with limits on both the
inpatient and outpatient treatment of mental disorders, the changes
proposed in the House will 1mprove access to mental health care for
senior citizens

Let me be frank because I know your time S short. I am here
today to urge that your Committee consider the inclusion of
improvements in the mental health benefit in the context of
catastrophic health care legislation. My point 1s: Why muddy tne

waters by having the same benefit in different preces of

legislation? cCatastrophic health legislation 1s on the move and the

sooner we can fiX the mental health benefit problem the better.

Thank you.
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STATEMENT OF HON. WILLIAM J. COYNE, U.S. REPRESENTATIVE
FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Congressman Coyne. Thank you very much, Senator.

I am here today with my two Ways and Means colleagues to ex-
press my concern over the present inadequate Medicare reimburse-
ment for outpatient mental health services.

Since the inception of the Medicare program, coverage for
mental health services has been extremely limited, particularly for
outpatient care. The original outpatient limit established by Medi-
care covered only $500.00 of services, at an effective coinsurance
rate of 50 percent, for a maximum annual reimbursement of
$250.00. As this limit has naver been updated, the 1965 $250.00
worth of coverage currently has a purchasing power of only $57.00.
As the purchasing power of these capped dollars has diminished, so
too have the possibility of acquiring adequate mental health serv-
ices for Medicare beneficiaries.

The Ways and Means Committee, in its recently approved cata-
strophic bill, recognized the need for a long overdue improvement
in Medicare’s mental health benefit. The committee approved a
modest step in the right direction. I emphasize the word “modest”
because the Ways and Means Committee agreed to an increase in
the outpatient cap from $250 to $1,000. If the committee had
chosen to adjust the cap for inflation, it is estimated that the bene-
fit would now be worth $2,000.

I ask for your support for an increase in Medicare’s mental
health benefit. Such an increase will now only begin to eliminate
some of the social stigma associated with mental illness, but it will
also encourage treatment in less expensive outpatient settings
rather than the repeated episodes of costly hospitalization.

And I thank you for the opportunity to testify.

Senator MitcrzLL. Thank you very much, Representative Coyne.
Now Representative Levin. Welcome, Sandy.

[The prepared statement of Congressman Coyne follows:]




O
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statement of Congressman Coyne

I come before you today with my Ways and Means colleagues,
Sander Levin and Tom Downey, to express my concern over the
present inadequate Medicare reimbursement for outpatient mental
health services. Since the inception of the Medicare program,
coverage for mental health services has been extremely limited,
particularly for outpatient care. The original outpatient laimit
established by Medicare covered only $500 of services, at an
effective coinsurance rate of 50%, for a maximum annual
reimbursement of $250. As this limit has never becn updated,
the 1965 $250 dollars worth of coverage currently has a
purchasing power of only $57 dollars! As the purchasing power
of these capped dollars has diminished, so too, has the
possibility of acquiring adequate mental health services for

Medicare beneficiaries.

The Ways and Means Committee, in its recently approved
catastrophic bill, recognized the need for a long overdue
improvement in Medicare's mental health benefit. The Committee
approved a modest step in the right direction. I emphasize the
word modest because the Ways and Means Committee agreed to an
increase in the outpatient cap from $250 to $1,000. If the
committee had chosen to adjust the cap fur inflation, it is

estimated that the benefit would now be worth over $2,000!

I ask for your support for an increase in Medicare's mental

health benefit. Such an increase will not only begin to
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eliminate some of the social stigma associated with mental
illness, but it will also encourage treatment in less expensive

outpatient settings rather than repeated episodes of costly

hospitalization.

Thank you.

O
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STATEMENT OF HON. SANDER M. LEVIN, U.S. REPRESENTATIVE
FROM THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

Congressman Levin. Thank you.

It is very good to be here with all of you. Four or five quick
points. The first one: this is just about reflective of inflation. And I
don’t see how in good conscience we can refuse to keep up with in-
flation in the area of mental health.

Second, I have had a chance to read Dr. Helm’s testimony, and
the argument seems to be that 90 percent presently fall within the
$250, and it is going to cos. a couple hundred million dollars to
cover those who are not covered, $85 million in 1989, $335 million
by 1992. So if you average that out, perhaps $200 million a year.

What does that say? Even if you accept the 90 percent figure,
and I don’t know where it comes from. It says that there are thou-
sands of people who are uncovered who are in the greatest need.
And tkeir response seems to be summed up: It’s already covering
the needs of the vast majority of beneficiaries. Is that how we are
going to handle mental health problems in America?

And then it said, well, the States have programs. I just wonder if
anyone is going to argue that they are adequately covering the
mental health needs of senior citizens. Congressman Downey point-
ed to the statistics. I think they are unchallenged. The elderly—
this is from the second page of my testimony—who suffer dispro-
portionately from emotional problems, depression, dementia, and
other disorders, receive only 6 percent of community mental health
services.

So I don’t understand it. And then it said, well, handle it
through reconciliation. When we have all those other issues to
handle? Then it said, well, it isn’t catastrophic. It doesr.’t fit right
within the exact contours of a catastrophic bill. But this committee
has considered a few other arcas, as we did in the House—home
health benefits and skilled nursing benefits—where there are clear-
cut needs, as is true here. And we are really talking about a situa-
tion for those people who are uncovered, inadequately covered, for
whom it is catastrophic.

And, finally, it said, the advisors would say to the President that
he should veto it. And a couple of very quick points on that.

We are not looking for a confrontation on mental health issues.
It is the last area we want confrontation on. I don’t think we want
to run scared on matters that matter deeply to us by threats of
veto. I hope we will pursue this vital area within our own lights,
and that the Administration will then sit down and talk with us
and see the light. I don’t see how in good conscience we can allow a
benefit 20 years old, to $250, in this area of mental health stay the
way it is.

Thank you. And we wish you well.

Senator MitcHELL. Thank you very much, gentlemen, for your
very thoughtful and helpful statements.

[The prepared written statement of Congressman Levin follows.]
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TESTIMONY OF CORGRESSMAN SANDER M. LEVIN

ON MEDICARE COVERAGE FOR OUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH CARE

JUNE 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee,

Thark you for the opportunity to tsstify today on the Medicare

outpatient mental health benefit,

The importance of catastrophic protection under Medicare is not

lost on any of us.

Almost everyone in our government, from the

President on through the Congress, has made a commitment to respond to

a very important need for seniors -- the lack of insurance protection

agajnst prolonged, expensive acute illness. This is not, howaver, the

only catastrophic health care need that Medicare fails to meet. I am

pleased by the emerging consensus within our various Committees tuat we

should take this opportunity to address the other most significant

areas of unmet need.

Both the Pinance and Ways and Means Comnittees

have reported changes in the skilled nursing, hospice and home care

benefits which will help £ill the void in services outside the

hospital.
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In addition, both of our Committees have approved a new,




income-related supplemental premium, which wiil improve the fairness of
the catastrophic benefit and help us make future improvements in

Medicare without increasing burdens oiighe poor elderly. All of these
changes address unmet catastrophic he;lth care needs, and we should be

proud of our progress thus far.

The issue under cousideration today -- outpatient mental health
care -= clearly falls into this category of important, unmet health
care needs. Frankly, I cannot iragine a more appropriate legislative
vehicle for improving Mecicare's rental nealth coverage than the
catastrophic bill. The current cutpatient rental health benefit 1is,
itself, a catastrophc. Today, alm:st without exception, every health
insurance ptan -- private, state and federal =- offers better
outpatient mental health coverage than we provide our eiderly through

Medicare.

We all know the litany of neglect. A minimal benefit was
established over 20 years ago when we hnew little about mental
illness. Even though our hnowledge and our ability to treat mental
illness have dramatically improved, the benefit has never beea
increased. Today's Medicare outpatient mental health benefit 1S worth
less than $60. It buys no more than 7 or 8 outpatient visits, leaving
the elderly on their own to pay for needed care. In terms of how
little coverage Melicare provides, mental illness quickly becomes

catastrophic for the elderly.

wWhat 1s the result? The elderly, who suffer disproportionately
from emotional problems, dep.ession, dementia, and other disorders,
receive only 6 percent ol corrmunity mental health services and only 2

percent of private psychiatric vis:ts.
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Advances in medical knowledge ha' e blurred many of the distinctions
between mental and physical illness. People with untreated mental
illness require significantly more care for ulcers, hypertension.
malnutrition and other physical ailments. An estimated 20 to 30 percent
of seniors who are labelled "senile" actually have reversible physical
condations that could, 1f recognized, be treated, restoring their health,
independence, and dignity. Clearly, a health program that pays little or
no attention to mental health is neither prudent nor effective. The wide
disparity in Medicare coverage of physical and mental illness can no

longer be justified.

This year, I s2nse a great resolve in Congress to do something about
it. As you know, the Ways and Means Committee has voted to increase the
Medicare outpat:ent mental health benefit from $250 to $1000. The Energy
and Commerce Committee has refined our change, indgexing the $1000 limit
to the Medical Economic Index and exempting medical management services.
Several proposals, including your own, Mr. Chairman, have been discussed
in your Committee, and I expect you will discuss a few other ideas
today. Whatever action you take, you cannot help but improve an

otherwise inadequate benefit. Inaction, however, is risky.

We face a difficult reconciliation this year, with some tough choices
for Medicare. Our target for Medicare cuts 15 now somewhere between $8.2
and 11.1 billion over three years. During reconciliation. it will not be
easy to enact a meaningful increase in the mental health benefit., It
rmakes much more sense to address this need today, when we have the option
of financing the benefit through the Part B premiums the graduated
premiums or some combination of the two =- just as we all have done in

the areas of home health, hospice care, and ski)ied nursing care.
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Inertia 1s a powerful force in politics and, unfirtunately. often
characger;sg;; of the Medicare program. It 1is always tempting to put off
change for a later opportunity. The opportunities for improving the
elderly's mental health care have been few and infreguent. Thanks to you
and your colleagues, Mr. Chgxrman, we face one today. I want to commend
you again for your leadership., and pledge my help in your endeavors to

create a meaningful mental health benefit for our semior citizens.
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Senator MrrcHELL. Are there any questions of any of the Repre-
sentatives? Senator Durenberzer?

Senator DURENBERGER. Juut a comment and in the form of a
question since this issue has been considered on the House side. We
made the observation earlier in the morning as we were dealing
with the recommendations on the drug benefit that this is a legiti-
mate part of the consideration of catastrophic health insurance.
Catastrophic is a new benefit. But when we begin to define “cata-
strophic,” we do it in financial terms, and we overhear have settled
on $1700.00. Then we have to add to that by way of definition out
of pocket expenses for covered benefits. And at that point we get
into the definition of “coverad benefit”.

And with regard to drugs and with regard to menial health, we
are already talking sbout covered benefit.

It is not a matter of designing a new benefit like catastrophic
and putting it into the program. It is taking the definition of “cata-
strophic” and relating it to two existing benefits. And while I have
somewhat different feelings about how to approach the drug bene-
fit and how to approach the mental health benefit, I can look at
them and say if you are in a hospital where you need a doctor to
inject a drug, you can get covered. But if you are not in a hospital,
or you do not have a doctor or a nurse to inject the drug, vcu are
not covered. Well that does not make a lot of sense. But I am open
to looking at the drug.

The same thing happens with regard to mental health. The in-
consistency of looking at the way this program existed in 1965, and
putting it against the reality of 1987, and all of the changes that
have taken place, and all the knowledge that we now have about
the impact of mental health on society, and the treatment modes
we have, and the drugs, I mean all of this stuff, I say we are not
adding benefit. We are just trying to make existing benefits more
realistic. And yet you always hear that, no, we can’t expect to
expand the benefit. Is that a problem when you have worked on
this over on the House side, too? Is this the right logic to approach
this whole catastrophic issue with? It doesn’t seem at all with the
Administration.

Congressman DownEY. I think that I follow your logic gretty
clearly that the way we approached it in the House—and Sandy
and Bill are on the subcommittee; I am not, but I tracked it pretty
closely—was that this is a problem that we have had for the last 22
years that we have not dealt with. And now we have an opportuni-
ty to deal with it, so let’s deal with it.

There are rational connections between mental health problems
and catastrophic coverage that themselves would allow us to boot-
strap this issue on top of that. But even if you did not have that
potential connection, here is a covered benefit, as you suggest, that
is not covering anybody properly. And now we have the chance to
do it. Let’s do it. And I think that that is somewhat compelling
logic, given the fact that the next few years of what we will deal
with in Medicare is simply trying to save money as oppused to deal
with any additional benefits. So this is the time.

Congressman LEVIN. And let me just add, it is a greatest short-
coming. And when we are addressing seriously Medicare, do you
leave it out? And, second, as Congressman Coyne and I originally
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drafted it, we had it included within the calculation of catastroph-
ic. And then it turned out that the Congressional Budget Office
had not calculated it correctly. And then it was argued, when they
re-calculated, that it would be too expexnsive.

And so we were caught. And I think, on balance, what makes
sense is to broaden the coverage so that it keeps somewhat up to
date, and then take another look after we have experience with it
in terms of its inclusion within the calculation of a catastrophic bill
that passes here.

But the worst thing to do is nothing. It shouldn’t be caught be-
tween two posts, the catastrophic bill and the way it is today.

Senator DURENBERGER. Thank you, gentlemen.

Senator MiTcHELL. Thank you very much.

Senator Matsunaga?

Senator MATSUNAGA. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.

First of all, let me thank you for scheduling this hearing on such
short notice. I appreciate it very much, as a sponsor of the bill, S.
718, which is a similar measure to that introduced by Congressman
Downey. I understand you have 60 cosponsors. I congratulate all
three of you for appearing before this subcommittee. I might, at
the outset, say you should not be disturbed too much by the Sen-
ate’s strict adherence to seniority because when I was a freshman
member in the House, I joined that group of freshman members
and the junior Congressmen to overthrow the seniority system in
the House. But seniority is a funny thing. The longer yoa stay in
Congress, the more merit it begins to show. [Laughter.]

Congressman LevIN. Congressman Downey agrees with you.
[Laughter.]

Senator MATSUNAGA. But let me ask this. As I understand it, the
Ways and Means Committee bill has a provision to raise the $250
cap to $1,000. Am I correct?

Congressman LevIN. That is correct.

Senator MATSUNAGA. I had propesed to offer that amendment in
the Finance Committee markup session. However, because of this
promised hearing, I withheld it in the hope that we would go into
other aspects of Congressman Downey’s bill and mine. So I thank
you for appearing before this subcommittee.

Congressman DowNEY. Sparky, let me just say that the 62 spon-
sors are as a result of your still having a lot of friends in the House
of Representatives more than anything else.

Senator MATSUNAGA. Thank you.

Congressman LEVIN. And if I just might add the hope of all of us

' that mental health not be lefl for bargaining between the House
and the Senate. I understand the need for bargaining. I don't think
this mental health need should be part of that process on balance.

R Senator MrrcHeLL. Thank you very much, gentlemen. I know I
speak for the other committee members when I say we are much
impressed with your commitment and your effort in this area and
we hope to work with you on it. Thank you.

The next witness is Dr. Robert Helms, the Assistant Secretary
for Planning and Evaluation, Department of Health and Human
Services. Dr. Helms, welcome, and we look forward to hearing from
you.
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT HELMS, Ph.D., ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR PLANNING AND EVALUATION, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES, WASHINGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY,
ROBERT E. WREN, DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF COVERAGE
POLICY IN THE HEALTH CARE FINANCING ADMINISTRATION

b Dl? HewLms. Thank you sery much, Mr. Chairman. It is good to be
ack.

With me is Mr. Robert Wren, who is the Director of the Office of
Coverage Policy in the Health Care financing Administration.

I am pleased to be here today to discuss the proposed changes
that you are considering in the basic Medicare outpatient mental
health benefit package to be included in the catastrophic legisla-
tion.

The Administration strongly believes that this legislation should
provids acute care, catastrophic protection for the elderly. Expan-
sions to Medicare unrelated to acute care, catastrophic protection
should not be included ir: *he catastrophic bill.

The Administration conveyed to the House that the inclusion of
Medicare program z2d4d-ons in the catastrophic bill would lead to «
veto recommendution by the President’s senior advisors. I under-
stand that Mr. Doucksai has already submitted this for the record. If
not, I will be glad to.

The Administration’s position is that the inclusion of expanded
outpatient mental health benefit is regarded as a Medicare add-on,
and would result in a similar recommendatior.

The catastrophic legislation proposed by the Administration al-
ready addresses the problem of acute catastrophic psychiatric epi-
sodes. Coverage of acute episodes in geaeral hospitals as well as the
associated physician services are covered in the same manner as
medical disorders. This approach of covering acute care is consist-
ent with the nature of the Medicare program and the objective of
the Administration’s catastrophic initiative.

The Administration’s plan was designed to provide peace of mind
to all beneficiaries for a modest premium. Under this premium ap-
proach, the actuaries could accurately reconcile revenue and ex-
pemges,l allowing the pregram to remain self-financing and budget
neutral.

This approach, self-financing for an acute care catastrophic bene-
fit, is quite different from an expansion of the underlying basic cov-
erage which would be supported in large measure by general reve-
nues.

Growth in Medicare Part B costs for the current program is al-
ready a problem. So the message is clear: If we are already con-
cerned about paying for current benefits, then we need to be very
careful about examining expansions to these benefits.

If Congress thinks an expansion of the basic outpatient mental
health benefit is necessary, that debate should be undertaken sepa-
rately from the debate on catastrophic. This expansion needs to be
considered in the Ci)roper context of all Medicare benefits, and
whether the limited benefit that accrues from this particular ex-
pansion would merit the adverse effect on the financial status of
the entire Medicare program.

24
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Based on our experience to date, the overwhelming majority—
nearly 99 percent—of the approximately 560,000 beneficiaries who
annually use the ambulatory psychiatric benefit do not reach the
current limit. In addition, 70 percent of the users incur charges
that are at or below 40 percent of the current limit.

Before a decision is made about an outpatient mental health ben-
efit expansion, we urge you to consider {hese facts:

. Utilization data indicate that the current limit is reached by
very few beneficiaries;

We know that disabled Medicare beneficiaries are disproportion-
ately represented among the users of mental health benefit, with
many of these individuals probably being chronically mentally ill;

Because of the role of the States in caring for the mentally ill, it
is not clear that a Medicare benefit change would enhance service
provision, even for the limited number of beneficiaries on whom it
might impact. Instead, we believe it might merely change the
source of payment from the States to the federal government;

The Federal Government already provides separate block grant
a‘s\§istance at the rate of approximately $500 million for these State
eiicits;

The catastrophic legislation proposed by the Administration, as
well as other bills introduced in the Congress, address the problem
of acute catastrophic psychiatric episodes through coverage of gen-
eral hospitalization and the services of physicians provided to inpa-
tients.

We believe these facts are compelling: expansion of the Medicare
ambulatory mental health benefit needs to be considered within
the framework of other chronic disease needs that fall within long-
term care.

We recognize that tue existing ambulatory mental health benefit
has not been examined since the inception of the program, and
that advances in the treatmer.t of psychiatric disorders have result-
ed in changes in the way care is given. However, based on a
number of facts, some of which I have outlined here, we believe
that considerably more thought and study needs to be given to the
issue.

Again, the bottom line is that even if Congress thinks such an
expansion of basic benefits needs to be considered, that debate
should be undertaken separately from the debate on catastrophic.
Its inclusion in a catastrophic bill would subject that bill to a veto
recommendation.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my statement. I would be happy to

. try to answer any questions.

Senator MiTcHELL. Thank you very much, Dr. Helms.

Senctor Durenberger?

Senator DURENBERGER. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

Senator MiTCHELL. Senator Matsunaga?

Senator MATSUNAGA. Dr. Helms, you state that utilization data
indicate that the current limit is reached by very few beneficiaries.
Now is it not true that because of the outpatient “cap” now having
a dollar value of $57.00, sinice it has not been raised since 1965, the
elderly who are truly in need of mental care just refuse to do so for
fear that they will be subjected to high out-of-pocket costs?
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Dr. HeLms, Let me say that we don’t really think it is a financial
reason. I would agree witl you that the evi-ence seems to indicate
that, the utilization of these services on an outpatient basis is low,
as you say. The utilization amang the aged seems to be lower than
among the general population for these kinds of services. I think
that rather than financial, it has to do with long-held attitudes
about using psychiatric services. That is something that the De-
partment is very interested in. Because the elderly seem to be re-
luctant about seeking psychiatric services the Department has sup-
ported efforts, for example, to ed .cate physicians about the avail-
ability of new types of drugs to treat psychiatric disorders.

Given that so many people do not really come up to the cap al-
ready, I have a hard time believing that it is mainly a financial
constraint.

Senator MATSUNAGA. And is it not true also that because of the
limitation, many physicians are actually treatiLg mental disorders
as physical disorders intentionally and mistakenly?

Dr. HeLms. That may be partially true. I would like to point out
that in Part B, in 1985, 180 million was spent, and on the inpatient
side in just the PPS hospitals, in the DRGs, 424 through 434, for
mental disorders, about $1.3 billion was paid for beneficiaries’ wit!
mental disorders.

There may be some of that. But, again, the inpatient procedures
on the DRG system now are subject to much tighter and, I think,
higher quality peer review to look at this. So you may be getting
some of that. I would agree that the incentives are there to do it.

Senator MATSUNAGA. According to the statistics presented to me
by experts, the percentage of beneficiaries who use the out patient
mental health benefit and exceed the limit is now about 11 ercent,
up from 5 percent a decade ago. Isn't that correct?

Dr. HeLms. I'm sorry. You are seying that 11 percent?

Senator MATSUNAGA. That'’s right. That the percentage of benefi-
ciaries who use the benefit and exceed the limit—exceeds the limit
by 11 percent as compared to 5 percent a decade ago.

Dr. HeLms. I think that is approximately right.

Senator MATSUNAGA. So there is definitely an indication of need
for raising the cap, is there not?

Dr. HELMS. Yes there are, a few individuals. A lot of those, we
think, are probably people who are disabled because of chronic
mental problems.

Senator MATSUNAGA. Well it appears to me that is awful.

Dr. HeLms. Again, not so much the aged. That is the best indica-
tion we have.

Senator MATSUNAGA. It appears to me that in your position you
have to take the position you are taking, despite what the best
policy may be, so—

Dr. HeLms, Let me point out that when we had the H.H.S. advi-
sory committee on catastrophic health costs we looked at this. We
really think that most of the acute catastrophic situations in
mental illness are handled on the inpatient side. And if you do go
back to the Bowen proposal it would ade a much better catastroph-
ic benefit for those situations. And we think that we have taken
care of this for the vast majority of catastrophic cases.
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Senator MatsunNaGa. Thank you. No further questions, Mr.
Chairman.

Senator MircHELL. Thank you very much, Senator Matsunaga.

Senator Bentsen, the Chairman of the full Committee, had in-
tended to be at this hearing but has been called away by other
pressing business. He is going to try to get back before the hearing
is over. I know he is vitally interested in this subject.

Thank you very much, Dr. Helms. We appreciate your testimony
and we look forward to working with you in the future.

‘Dr. Hems. Thank you.

Senator MiTCHELL. And the finel panel will consist of four wit-
ness: Steven Shearfstein, former Deputy Medical Director of the
American Psychiatric Association; Ann Utley, Member of the Na-
tional Board of the National Mental Health Association; Malcolm
Strictl2r, Administration, Friends Hospital, Philadelphia, Pennsyl-
vania, on behalf of the National Association of Private Psychiatric
Hospitals; and Alan Spielman, Executive Director, Government
Programs-Legislation, Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association.

Good afternoon, Miss Utley, and gentlemen. We look forward to
hearing from you. We will begin with Dr. Sharfstein.

[The prepared written statement of Dr. Helms follows:]

oo
- 2
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STATEMENT BY

ROBERT B. HELMS, PH.D
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR PLANNING AND EVALUATION

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH
COMMITTEE ON FINANCE
UNITED STATES SENATE

JUNE 18, 1987
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MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE,

I AM PLEASED TO BE HERE TODAY 10 DISCUSS WITH YQU PROPOSED
CHANGES TO THE BASIC MEDICARE QUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT
PACKAGE THAT ARE BEING CONSIDERED FOR INCLUSION IN THE
CATASTROPHIC LEGISLATION.

THE ADMINISTRATION STRONGLY BELIEVES THAT THIS LEGISLATION SHOULD
PROVIDE ACUTE CARE, CATASTROPHIC PROTECTION FOR THE ELDERLY.
EXPANSIONS TO MEDICARE UNRELATED TO ACUTE CARE, CATASTROPHIC
PROTECTION SHOULD NOT BE INCLUDED IN A CATASTROPHIC BILL. THE
ADMINISTRATION CONVEYED TO THE HOUSE THAT INCLUSION OF MEDICARE
PROGRAM ADD-ONS IN A CATASTROPHIC BILL WOULD LEAD TO A VETO
RECOMMENDATION BY THE PRESIDENT'S SENIOR ADVISORS. I HAVE BEEN
ADVISED THAT THE INCLUSION OF AN EXPANDED OUTPATIENT MENTAL
HEALTH BENEFIT IS REGARDED AS A MEDICARE ADD-ON AND WOULD RESULT

IN A SIMILAR RECOMMENDATION.

THE CATASTROPHIC LEGISLATION PROPOSED BY THE ADMINISTRATION
ALREADY ADDRESSES THE PROBLEM OF ACUTE CATASTROPHIC PSYCHIATRIC
EPISODES. COVERAGE OF ACUTE EPI?ODES IN GENERAL HOSPITALS AS
WELL AS THE ASSCCIATED PHYSICIAN SERVICES ARE COVERED IN THE SAME
MANNER AS MEDICAL DISORDERS. THIS APPROACH OF COVERING ACUTE
CARE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE NATURE OF THE MEDICARE PROGRAM AND
THE OBJECTIVE OF THE ADMINISTRATION'S CATASTROPHIC INITIATIVE.
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THE ADMINISTRATION'S PLAN WAS DESIGNED TO PROVIDE PEACE OF MIND
TO ALL BENEFICIARIES FOR A MODEST PREMIUM. UNDER THIS PREMIUM
APPROACH, THE ACTUARIES COULD ACCURATELY RECONCILE REVENUE AND
EXPENSES -= ALLOWING THE PROGRAM TO REMAIN SELF-FINANCED AND
BUDGET NEUTRAL.

THIS APPROACH, SELF-FINANCING OF AN ACUTE CARE CATASTROPHIC

BENEFIT, IS QUITE DIFFERENT FROM AN EXPANSION OF THE UNDERLYING
BASIC COVERAGE WHICH WOULD BE SUPPORTED IN LARGE MEASURE BY
GENERAL REVENUES. GROWTH IN MEDICARE PART B COSTS FOR THE
CURRENT PROGRAM IS ALREADY A PROBLEM. THE MESSAGE IS CLEAR:

IF WE ALREADY ARE CONCERNED ABOUT PAYING FOR CURRENT BENEFITS,
THEN WE NEED TO CAREFULLY EXAMINE EXPANSIONS SUCH AS THOSE UNDER
CONSIDERATION HERE TODAY.

IF CONGRESS THINKS AN EXPANSION OF THE BASIC OUTPATIENT MENTAL
HEALTH BENEFIT IS NECESSARY, THAT DEBATE SHOULD BE UNDERTAKEN
SEPARATELY FROM THE DEBATE ON CATASTROPHIC. THIS EXPANSION NEEDS
TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PROPER CONTEXT OF ALL MEDICARE BENEFITS,
AND WHETHER THE LIMITED BENEFIT THAT ACCRUES FROM THIS PARTICULAR
EXPANSION WOULD MERIT THE ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL STATUS

OF THE ENTIRE MEDICARE PROGRAM.

BASED ON OUR EXPERIENCE TO DATE, THE OVERWHELMING MAJORITY
(NEARLY 90 PERCENT) OF ThE APPROXIMATELY 560,000 BENEFICIARIES

ANNUALLY USING THE AMBULATORY PSYCHIATRIC BENEFIT DO NOT REACH
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THE CURRENT LIMIT. IN ADDITION 70 PERCENT OF THE USERS INCUR
CHARGES AT CR BELOW 40 PERCENT OF THE CURRENT LIMIT.

CONSEQUENTLY, WE MUST QUESTION WHETHER AN EXPANSION OF THE
OUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT, ALREADY ADEQUATELY COVERING THE
NEEDS OF THE VAST MAJORITY OF BENEFICIARIES, IS NECESSARY OR
APPROPRIATE. IS IT OF HIGHER PRIORITY THAN ASSURING OUR ABILITY
TO PAY FOR THE CURRENT BENEFIT PACKAGE? IS IT MORE IMPORTANT
THAN OTHER AREAS OF NEED? FOR EXAMPLE, LEGISLATION UNDER
CONSIDERATION IN THE HOUSE WOULD INCREASE THE CURRENT PROGRAM
PAYOUT LIMIT OF $250 TO $1000. ACCORDING TO THE CONGRESSIONAL
BUDGET OFFICE, THIS PROVISION ALONE IS ESTIMATED ANNUALLY TO COST
$85 MILLION IN 1989 AND $335 MILLION BY 1992.

BEFORE ANY DECISION IS MADE ABOUT AN OUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH
BENEFIT EXPANSION WE URGE YOU TO CONSIDER THESE FACTS:

o UTILIZATION DATA INDICATE THAT THE CURRENT LIMIT IS
REACHED BY VERY FEW BENEFICIARIES.

o WE KNOW THAT DISABLED MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES ARE
DISPROPORTIONATELY REPRESENTED AMONG THE USERS OF THE
MENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT, WITH MANY OF THESE INDIVIDUALS
PROBABLY BEING CHRONICALLY MENTALLY ILL.
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BECAUSE OF THE ROLE OF THE STATES IN CARING FOR THE
MENTALLY ILL, IT IS NOT CLEAR THAT A MEDICARE BENETIT
CHANGE WOULD ENHANCE SERVICE PROVISION -- EVEN FOR THE
LINITED NUMBER OF BENEFICIARIES ON WHOM IT MIGHT
IMPACT. INSTEAD WE BELIEVE IT MIGHT MERELY CHANGE THE

PAYMENT SOURCE.

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ALREADY PROVIDES SEPARATE BLOCK
GRANT ASSISTANCE (APPROXIMATELY $500 MILLION II FY

1987) IN SUPPORT OF THESE STATE EFFORTS.

THE CATASTROPHIC LEGISLATION PROPOSED BY THE
ADMINISTRATION, AS WELL AS OTHER BILLS INTRODUCED IN
THE CONGRESS, ADDRESS THE PROBLEM OF ACUTE CATASTROPHIC
PSYZHIATRIC EPISODES THROUGH COVERAGE OF GENERAL
HOSPITALIZATION AND THE SERVICES OF PHYSICIANS PROVIDED

TO INPATIENTS.

WE BELIEVE THESE FACTS ARE COMPELLING: EXPANSION OF THE MEDICARE

AMBULATORY MENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT NEEDS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHIN

THE FRAMEWORK OF OTHER CHRONIC DISEASE NEEDS THAT FALL WITHIN

LONG-TERM CARE.

WE RECOGNIZE THAT THE EXISTING AMBULATORY MENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT

HAS NOT BEEN EXAMINED SINCE THE INCEPTION OF THE PROGRAM, AND

THAT ADVANCES IN THE TREATMENT OF PSYCHIATRIC DISORDERS HAVE

O
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RESULTED IN CHANGES IN THE WAY CARE IS GIVEN. HOWEVER, BASED ON
A NUMBER OF FACTS, SOME OF WHICH I HAVE OUTLINED HERE, WE BELIEVE
THAT CONSiDERABLY MORE THOUGHT AND STUDY NEEDS TO BE GIVEN TO THE
ISSUE. IS SIMPLY RAISING THE LIMIT TO $1000 THE BEST WAY TO GO,
IF ANY EXPANSION TO THE CURRENT MEDICARE OUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH
BENEFIT PACKAGE IS WARRANTED?

WE NEED TO EXAMINE IMPORTANT QUESTIONS SUCH AS THE FOLLOWING:

o GIVEN THE PATTERN OF UTILIZATION, MOST USERS ARE NOT IN
NEED OF ACUTE CARE AND FIND THE BENEFIT ADEQUATE. IS
INCREASING EXPENDITURES FOR THIS BENEFIT TO A VERY
LIMITED NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS REASONABLE? ARE PROBABLE
COSTS AND BENEFITS COMMENSURATE?

o GIVEN STATE ACTIVITIES IN THE CARE OF THE MENTALLY ILL,
WOULD SUCH A BENEFIT EXPANSION RESULT IN ENHANCED
SERVICES FOR MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES? OR WOULD IT
MERELY CHANGE A CHRONIC CARE EXPENSE FROM STATE BUDGETS
TO THE FEDERAL BUDGET?

AGAIN, THE BOTTON LINE IS THAT EVEN IF CONGRESS THINKS SUCH AN
EXPANSION OF BASIC BENEFITS NEEDS TO PS CONSIDERED, THAT DEBATE
SHOULD BE UNDERTAKEN SEPARATELY FROM THE DEBATE ON CATASTROPHIC.
ITS INCLUSION IN A CATASTROPHIC BILL WILL SUBJECT THAT BILL TO A
VETO RECOMMENDATION.

76-657 0 - 87 - 2




MR. CHAIRMAN, THAT CONCLUDES MY STATEMENT.

I SHALL BE HAPPY NOW
TO ADDRESS ANY QUESTIONS YOU OR OTHER MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE
MIGHT HAVE.
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STATEMENT OF STEVEN SHARFSTEIN, M.D., FORMER DEPUTY
MEDICAL DIRECTOR, AMERICAN PSYCHIATRIC ASSOCIATION,
BALTIMORE, MD

Dr. SeArFsTEIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman and distinguished Senators, I am Steven Sharf-
stein, Medical Director of the Shepherd and Enoch Pratt Psychiat-
ric Hospital in Baltimore and Clinical Professor of Paychiatry at
the University of Maryland. Formerly, I was Depuiy Media! Dirzc-
tor of the American Psychiatric Association and was involved for
13 years in the Public Health Service in policy and health financ-
ing at the National Institute of Mental Health.

In addition to the practice of psychiatry, my career has been de-
voted to health financing and services research. I have published
over a hundred papers and books on this subject.

I am honored to appear before the Senate Finance Committee’s
Health Subcommittee on behalf of the American Psychiatric Asso-
ciation, a medical specialty society representing more than 33,000
physicians nationwide.

My full testimony you have for the record. My oral statement
will focus on three areas: structuring a benefit for catastrophic
health insurance purposes, which could serve as an initial step on
the legislative journey toward a cost effective redirection of the
Medicare program’s treatment of patients with mental and addict-
ive disorders, and how one might look at restructuring the totality
of the Medicare psychiatric benefit for those with mental and ad-
dictive disorders. And then I would like to make some comments
about clinical mental illness.

As we have previously testified before this subcommittee, the
APA supports the concept of nondiscriminatory coverage for pa-
tients with mental and addictive disorders. If due to budgetary con-
straints nondiscriminatory coverage is not possible, presently
APA’s recommendations focus on a proposed outpatient mental
health floor amendm~y:t for S. 1127 and the need to eliminate the
190-day lifetime limit in psychiatric hospitals.

I cannot even begin to address our particular concern without
first expressing our deep appreciation for the interest evidenced by
this committee and by the three distinguished Senators who have
offered amendments during the markup of 3. 1127 and many other
Senators who have commented publicly on the need to change
these outmoded and outdated benefits.

As you have heard, the House Ways and Means Committee and
the Health and Environment Subcommittee of Energy and Com-
merce have included very important modifications and we com-
mend them for their efforts as well.

As you know, for outpatient mental health care Medicare limits
coverage for treatment is now $250.00 after an etfective 50 percent
copayment, and this benefit has not changed since the inception of
the program, and has not ket pace with inflation, and, therefore,
effectively we have a slashed benefit.

Senator Matsunaga has introduced the Medicare Mental Illness
Nondiscrimination Act of 1987 which eiiminates discriminatory
coverage of outpatient mental disorders treatment.
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Senator Durenberger has introduced The Medicare Ambulatory
Mental Health Services Access Amendments of 1987, and you, Mr.
Chairman, have drafted an amendment prior to the Catastrophic
Health Insurance markup.

For those with mental and addictive disorders, the current outpa-
tient benefit is indeed catastrophic for them. This benefit is so lim-
ited as to encourage patients either to spend a great deal of money
out of pocket for outpatient care or to more often use inpatient
services or to wait until a true catastrophe sets in. The science and
understanding of treating mental illness has progressed, and man-
agement of these disorders using combinations of psychopharmoco-
logic agents and other modes of treatment has also progressed.

Dr. Helms does not understand the nature of chronic mental ill-
ness. Chronic mental illness, similar to chronic medical illness, has
acute episodes that are acutely catastrophic. It is a relapsing ill-
ness, similar to diabetes and arthritis. The capacity to have outpa-
tient benefits that are adequate, in fact, is an acute catastrophic
benefit.

Despite the fact that sonie treatments mentally ill patients use
are comparable to those used for any patient who may have a
chronic medical illness, the monitoring of medications and other
medical interventions is subject to the arbitrary $250.00 limit.

APA recommends for the committee a Senate floor amendmen?
to the catastrophic health insurance bill: first, the exemption of
medical management of mental and addictive disorders from any
limits which may be imposed on psychotherapy; second, 25 outpa-
tient psychotherapy visits or the $1,000.00 limit annually with ap-
propriate peer review mechanisms if these are thought to be
needed; and, third, include all unfunded expenditures on covered
outpatient services in the cap that triggers a catastrophic expendi-
ture.

I would like to close by mentioning a patient that I recently ad-
mitted to the Shepherd Pratt Hospital, a 73 year old lady with an
acutely psychotic manic illness. At the time of her admission, she
had some gross delusions and was very difficult to understand. But
one thing came across crystally clear. She wanted to know whether
her Medicare benefits would cover her illness. She wanted to know
not only in terms of her stay in the hospital, but also in terms of
needed outpatient care. And I was struck vith the fact that adding
to the tragedy of mental illness was the wurry of a potential finan-
cial catastrophy. It is very important that you do something about
this now.

Thank you very much.

Senator MircHELL. Thank you Dr. Sharfstein.

Miss Utley?

[The prepared written starement of Dr. Sharfstein follows:]

Lo
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Mr. Chairran and distinguished Senat rs, I an Steven S. Sharfstein,
M.D., Medical Director of the Shepherd and Enoch Pratt Psychiatric Hospital in
Baltimore and Clinical Professor of Psychiatry at the University ot
Maryland. Forzmerly, I was Deputy Medical Director of the American Psychiatric
Association and waa involved in policy and health financing at the National
Institute of Mental Health. 1In addition to the practice of psychiatry much of
ny career has been devoted to health financing and services research., I am
honored to appear before the Senate Pinance Health Subcommittee on behalf of
the Anerican Psychiatric Association, a medical specialty society representing

more than 33,000 physicians nationwide.

Introduction

My testimony today, as requested by Coraittee staff, will not
reiterate APA's previously expressed concerns to Congress about the
cataatrophic health insurance needs of the mentally i1l and the documentation
of cost effectiveness of nental health care. Concerns about the catastrophic
health insurance needs of the mentally {11 were presented tefore the Senate
Pinance Cozmittee on March 19, 1987 when wo testified together with the
Naticnal Alliance for the Mentally Ill and the National Association of Private
Psychiatric Hospitals. As you know APA supports the concept of nondis-
crininatory coverage for patients with mental and addictive disorders.

Our testinony today will focus on two major areas: how a henefit can
be structured for catastrophic health insurance purposes and thus serve aa an
initial step on the legislative journey toward a cost effective redirection of
the Medicare progran's treatment of mental and addictive disorders; and, how

one nmight look at restructuring the totality of the Medicare psychiatric
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benefit for those with mental disr o Three distinguished Senators,

including you, Mr. Chairman, have been quite concerned about restructuring
Medicsre's outpatient -~sychiatric benefit. I will take this opportunity to
first comzent on those Lills and proposed anendments and then elaborate on how
these would help meet the catastrophic mental heslth needs of the population
we are here to discusa.

However, I cannot even begin to address any of the particulac
legislative matters without first expreseing our deep apprecistion for the
interest and concern by this Comaittze in beginning the legislative journey to
elininate Medicare's hietoric discriminatory coversge for the treatment of
mental i{llness. A nuaber of your distinguished House Ways and Meane and
Energy and Commerce Committes colleagues (Representatives Downey, Coyne, Levin
and Sikoreki), with the support of their reepective Comaittee and Subccmuittee
leadership, have proposed through H.R. 2470 to reapond to the catastrophic
nature of phyaical and mental illnese by readjusting Medicare's psychiatric
outpatient benefit which concomnitantly will have a cost-effective impact on
the catastrophic inpstient segment. The House Ways and Means bill adjusts
Medicare's outpatient mental health benefit to current dollars (with Medicare
paying $1,000). The effective 508 copayment is left intact. APA appreciates
thie offort on behslf of our patients ahd further cocmends the House Energy
and Cozmerce Subcommittee on Health and the Environaent for changing thia
benefit by exempting medical managezent of mental disorders from any limits

and allowing 25 paychotherapy visits.
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Current Outpatient Propossls

Medicare's current coverage policy limits outpatient mental health
care to $250 annually after an effective 50V copayment. XNany Senators on the
Finance Cozaittee have recogafzed the inadequacy of this benefit and have
comaented On the need to at least adjust the benefit for inflation. In fact,
the Chairzan of the Pinance Coxzittee, Senator Bentsen and other distinguiahed
Senators noted the limitation of the mental health benefit when S. 1127 was
introduced.

At this juncture we will cozaent on three recent bills or proposed
azendzents to begin to change Medicare's discriainatory coverage of the
treataent of mental illnesa. All proposals respond to changes in the new
science of treatzent of mental {llness.

First, Senator Matsunaga in March of thia year introduced the
Medicare Mental Illness Nondiscrinmination Act of 1987, S. 718. This bill
would eliminate Medicare'a diacriminatory linits on outpatient psychiatric
care and thus, where appropriate, encourage phyaicians and patients to use
less expensive outpatient care as a viable alternative to inpatient care. The
bill would provide nondiscriminatory outpatient coveruige for those with menta).
and addictive disorders. By including portions of this bill i{n a catastrophic
health insursnce bill, as has been done by the Houce Ways and Means and Energy
and Coxzuerce Coamittees, ihe Congress could not only ease the Surden for those
who now need nedically necessary outpatient psychiatric care and may have
reduced access to this care, but also permit a coat offset to inpatient
catastrophic expenditures.

Second, in May Senator Durenberger introduced "The Medicare

Azbulatory Mental Health Servicea Access Amzendzents of 1987,* (S. 1209). This




bill would consider medical management of psychiatric disorders in the sare
manner that physical fllness is covered under Medicare. Limits are placed
solely on one particular facet of psychiatric treatment, psychotherapy (with a
systen of varying copayment mechanisms).

Precedent alreadv exists for this separation of medical management
and psychotherapy. In 1984 the Department of HHS (Health and Human Services)
inplenented » Melicare coverage change for one category of treatment of
mental, psychoneuzatic and personality disorders that is, Alzheimer's Disease
and related disorders. It removed limitations on medical management but
maintained the effective $250 linmit on psychotherapy. The coverage change
recognizes that the care of patients with Alzheimer's Disease and Related
pisorders i3 essentially medical in nature. As you well know, for those with
chronic or acute nmental illness, treatment may involve psychopharmacological
intervention in conjunction uith or instead of psychotherapy. As with any
i{1lness of A chronic or acute nature treated by a physician, when medication
i8 prescribed there may be need for monitoring of blood levels, urinary
function and blood pressure. The assessment of these functions bears
particular import in the elderly population who on average take ten
medications per person. At times the medications they take for high blood
pressure (such as beta blockers) may produce severe depressions. These
depressions may be alleviated by change or reworking of the nmultiplicity of
nedications in conjunction with other physicians. The elderly witn nental
disorders include first those who reach old age with a history of chronic
mental impairment. Second, those with no history of mental impairment who
develop one in older age, and third those with physical and nmental
disorders. With current coverage, some of our sickest patients, (for

instance, those who guffer from manic depre3cion and schizophrenia and may

3 -
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need this type of medical management intervention, and those with physical and

nental disorders), have the essentially =medical portion of any of their
interventions or treatments subject to an arbitrary discriminatory outpatient
1ipit. We anticipate that between one third and one half of the patients who
currently receive mental health outpatient services could benefit from the
nedical management coverage change.

How could a medical management benefit work? Let us look at the
diseasge of 1nic depression. This disorder has been effectively treated for
many years by a drug called lithium. (I might note that parenthetically it
has been well docuaented by research that such treatment has resulted in
saving of $6.5 billion dollars cost saving over the past decade.) This
pharmacological agent, like others, must be carefully monitored. Some
individuals function in a well-calibrated =anner, and need rare intervention,
others, however, need much more careful ronitoring. When we speak about manic
depressive disorders, we speak of a genetically based disease with

physiological conccmmitants not the ups and downs of everyday life. A recent

Rewsweek article docuxented the fdentification of a specific gene as a cause

of nanic-depreasion. Separate teams have identified a protein that appears to
be specific to the braina of patient with Alzheimer's disease. These
discoveries herald a new era in the application of genetics to psychiatric
disorders. Schizophrenia is another complex disease wit{ \ a physiolog.cal
basis, onset in early life and long~term treatuent needs.

With respect to use of psychotherapy, Senator Durenberger's bill,

while a commendable concept, may pose some difficulties administratively

because of the varying copayments depending on the ber of psychotherapy
visits. Alternatively, in 1lieu of varyina copayments to impact upon

utilization, one may wish to implement a peer review mechanism. APA has been
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extensively involved through our own quality assurance group in assisting
CHAMPUS and third party fnsurers to provide quality, cost effective mental
health services by implementing appropriate peer review.

Your own draft snendment Senator Mitchell attempted to identify the
sickest patients by disease ard include only those individuals i{n catastrophic
proposals. When I was at National Institute of Mental Health my colleagues
and I investigated this approach but it may be problematic for a number of
reasons. First, the majority of other patients covered by catastrophic
proposals or bills are defined as being in the catastrophic category because
they have catastrophic expenditures. Second, this would place the patient at
financial risk. If a patient is found to have a disorder not covered by the
catastrophic plan then they will be at risk for all out~of-pocket
expenditures. Third, this zay be ezsy to "gane” as some individuals might
automatically classify patients in these categories.

Who currently uses outpatient mental health care? According to a
recent CBO estinate based on the Medicare statistical file, in 1585
approxinmately 465,000 Medicare beneficiaries used outpatient mental health
gervices and approxinmately 10 percent of those individuals had claizs near or
at the $250 doller limit. This would translate into approximately $101
dollarg per user. Other HCPA data estimates that in 1975 4.9 percent of the
approximately 170,000 Medicare beneficiaries who used mental health outpatient
gervices submitted bills for more than $500 dollars worth of services (and
were thus aifected by the limit) whereas .03 percent of all Medicare
beneficiaries were affected by the limit. (The numbers of total individuals
u3ing gervices differ because of the methods used in collecting ‘he two data
sources. The following estimate of beneficiaries may include some for whom

claims may not be paid in the future.) By 1986 estimates indicated that 11.2




percent of beneficiaries who used mental health services {approxirately
560,306 beneficiaries) reached the $500 limit and .21 percent of all Medicare
beneficiaries had reached the outpatient limitation. Thus, the limitations
are affecting more and more of the population. There appears to be a trend
toward more beneficiaries reaching the limitations at the same time that some
individuals may be discouraged from using the benefit because it is so limited
(a £inding borne out by the Rand Health Insurance Experiment).

As you know, expenses incurred for services furnished by other health
personnel in conjunction with "or incident to* a physician's treatment of
mental, psychoneurotic or personality disorders are not subject to the $250
limit if the patient has not met this 1init with psychiatrists' cr treatment
services. Once the beneficiary reaches the annual limit services are no
longer paid. Thus additional services may be provided in a variety of
settings incident to the psychiatrists services.

APA recommends (if nondiscriminatory coverage is not possible due to
budgetary corstraints) a catastrophic outpatient mental health floor azendment
which exempts pedical management from any caps which you ray choose to impose
on the psychotherapy benefit. If limits must be imposed on psychotherapy we
recommend 25 vigits. All lnc;::ed covered costs should be included in the cap
that triggers a catastrophic expenditure. Let us ease the burden for our
elderly and chronically mentally {11 by beginning the legislative journey

toward nondiscrimination,

Specifically, we have recommended the separation of outpatient
rmedical management and paychotherapy with a 25 vigit limit based on a review
of the literature and actual experience. The TRIMS experiment and eventual
gervice delivery in a comsunity mental health center in Texas, indicated

anecdotally that approximately 90% of geriatric patients with mental
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disorders used less than 24 visits a year. Statistics frea the private sector
suggests that approximately 80% of patients can be treated within these

limits. In 1973 psychiatrists' fees were $35 per hour of psychotherapy visit,
if one assumes these fces were approximately $20 per hour in 1965 the average
nunber of ore hour psychotherapy visits would have been 25 (data from 1965 is

not currently available).

Other Coverage Issues

The 190 day lifetime limit in psychiatric hospitals is outdated and
outsoded. We are not talking of residential care we are referring to an
active course Of inpatient treatment as life saving as other medical and
surgical interventions apnd treatment. APA has recomzended elininating
discriminatory coverage policies for those with mental disorders in all
programs. If this is not possible due to budgetary constraints, you may
consider eliminating the "lifetime limit® and in lieu thereof imposing an
annual linit isuch as 75 days), with a peer review nechanisn for additional
rnedically necessary care on a case-by-case basis. APA also recomuends a two
for ons tradeoff to allow partial hospitalizations programs to develop more
fully.

It has been well docuzented that APA's own inpatient peer review
program implenented for CHAMPUS saved close to approxinately two million
dollars in 1985 alone by disallowing 6,626 inpatient days. Hospital limits,
even annual ones will be problematic, Lf the outpatient psychiatric benefit is
not expanded to ensure nondiscriminatory medical nanagenent coverage and
responsible outpatient psychotherapy limits. Currently all acute psychiatric

episodes for elderly and chronically centally i1l patlentg nust be
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seen in a hospital. With expanded outpatient coverage some alternatives may
exist,

Unpublished statistics suggest that approximately 60% of the patient
population hospitalized for mental disorders are over age 65. Overall,
approximately 70% of the Medicare population with pental disorders is over age
65.

If an annual linit were to be placed on care in an inpatient
psychiatric hospital, partial hospitalization services would need to be
provided more £rlly by the Medicare progran, with appropriate prior
certification and ongoing review of active treatment. Thege services could
save funds for Medicare and provide needed help for beneficiaries. Estimates
indicate that these programs cost about half of what an inpatient hospital day

does,

APA supports nondiscrininatory coverag® of mental and addictive
disorders under Medicare. If at this tige budget constraints will not allow
such an appropriate and fair restructuring of Medicare's psychiatric benefit,

we recommend:

(a) An outpatient mental health floor amendzent to the catastrophic health

insurance bill (S, 1127) which would:

1) Exempt medical parigement of mental and addictive disorders fron

1imits otherwise imposed on psychotherapy.
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- 10 -

2) Permit 25 paychotherapy visits annually.

3) Allow all unfunded covered services to trigger a catastrophic

expenditure.

{b) Delete the 190 day lifetime limit on treatment in psychiatric
hospitals. 1If an annual limit is inposed (e.g. 75 days) peer review
should authorize additional nmedical treatment necessary on a case-by-
case basis. 1In the event of an annual limit, authorize a tradeoff of

two partial hospitalization duys for every one inpatient day.

Let me end by quoting from a docunent published almost ten years ago
which tragically is still appropriate today (by the then President's
Comnission on Mental Health (the Task Panel on Mental Health of the elderly)):
« « «"Bxisting policies in Medicare specifically, have tended to foster
inpatient psychiatric trecatment without adequate support for outpatient, day
care, or ongoing rehabilitative services . . . current limitationa . . . have
proven to be shortsighted, inequitable and costly. Inpatient health and
mental health services are often used when outpatient mental health care would
be more appropriate and less expens}ve « « « The availability of ambulatory or
day care bagssd.mental health zervices has the potential for reversing
developing disabilities and keeping them from becoming pernanent. Yet unless
there is an adequate source of funding for these services, their potential

will remain unfulfilled.”
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STATEMENT OF ANN UTLEY, MEMBER OF THE NATIONAL BOARD,
NATIONAL MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION, DALLAS, TX, AC-
COMPANIED BY CHRIS KOYANAGI, DIRECTOR OF FEDERAL RE-
LATIONS FOR THE NAT.ONAL MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION

Ms. UrLey. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my
name is Ann Utley. I am on the Board of the National Mental
Health Association. I am also Vice President in charge of education
and communication for the Mental Health Association in Texas. I
would like to introduce to you Chris Koyanagi. She is the Director
of Federal Relations for the National Mental Health Association.

Today, I would like to discuss with you the need to improve the
Medicare coverage of mental health services. It certainly makes
sense to consumers of mental health services because they are the
major mental illnesses that very quickly become a tremendous fi-
nancial disaster. And for anyone with a serious mental illness,
Medicare provides such limited reimbursement for zssential serv-
ices that one quickly finds oneself with terrible out of pocket ex-
peunditures.

We, therefore, recommend that changes to Medicare mental
health coverage be made and be made as quickly as possible.

Our highest priority is improvement in outpatient mental health
benefits. We applaud efforts by members of this committee to ad-
dress this need, such as S. 1209, introduced by Senator Duren-
berger—and, Senator Durenberger, I do bring you greetings from
Patt Franciosi, and also thank you for your kind comments at our
recent gala—and introduced by Senator Matsunaga, which was
Senate bill 718.

Senator DURENBERGER. Thank you. Ms. Utley. We suggest the
following outpatient mental health package:

One, coverage of routine physician visits for purposes of monitor-
ing the patient’s condition, particularly the monitoring of medica-
tions and their side effects, but specifically excluding psychothera-
py on the same basis as any other physician visit for any other ill-
nesz.

Coverage of psychotherapy for up to 25 visits per year;

The coverage of routine physician visits sometimes termed “medi-
cal management” removes a highly discriminatcry restriction from
the law, one that could also be potentially dangerous for patients
on psychotropic medications. Currently, visits to physicians for
medication monitoring fall within that $250 cap. By removing the
cap from these visits, physicians could monitor potentially toxic
medications without arbitrary limits which have no medical basis.

The other change that we urge would alter the limit on outpa-
tient psychotherapy from a dollar limit to a visit limit of 25 visits
per year.

According to CBO, 25 visits is an equivalent benefit of the $1,000
cap. It is now more than 20 years since that original $250 limit on
psychiatric care was enacted and no adjustment, as you have heard
today, has been made in that 20 years. And, again, I will repeat
that 20 years ago that $250 today, 20 years later, is now worth that
same $57 that we heard earlier.
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A shift to a limit on visits avoids this problem in the future, and
it is an approuch increasingly being adopted by States as they regu-
late health insurance coverage for mental illness.

In addition to the changes in outpatient benefits described, we
urge the tollowing changes regarding Part A services:

One the unlimited coverage of psychiatric services in a general
hospital, which is now included in Senate bill 1127, should be
changed to a 75-day-a-year limit for psychiatric services in both
general hospitals and in psychiatric hospitals.

Two, coverage beyond that 75-day limit should then be provided
if found necessary through a medical necessity review in the same
manner that is done by the CHAMPUS program.

Three, that reimbursement of inpatient services should be made
only for patients receiving active treatment.

Four, a new benefit of partial hospitalization services should be
added with a trade-off of partial hospitalization services for each
day of inpatient care under that 75-day limit, annual limit.

These proposed changes to Part A would eliminate the current
190-day limit on care in a psychiatric hospital and establish instead
inpatient limit on psychiatric services in all settings. Such a limit
further allows for a trade-off mechanism between 24-hour-a-day in-
patient stays and partial hospitalization services. Partial hospitali-
zation programs provide day services for patients who continue to
live in the community, or evening and night services for patients
who are able to leave the hospital during the day.

The costs of partial hospitalization, according to the data com-
piled by the National Institute of Mental Health, are generally
about one-third as expensive as 24-hour-a-day inpatient stay.

Mr. Chairman, we would hope that as your committee goes on
that you will continue to study this, and as quickly as possible, let’s
get some help for these people that really need it.

Thank you.

Senator MircHELL. Thank you, Miss Utley.

Mr. Strickler.

[The prepared written statement of Ms. Utley follows:]

I
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ccanittee, my name i3 Ann Utley. I em a
neamber of the Board of the National Mental Health Association (NMHA) and Vice
President for Comzunication and Education for the Texas Mental Health
Association.

The National Mental Health Assocfation is & private, voluntary
organization providing leaderahip to confront the entire range of mental health
issues at the local, state and national levels. In addition to the NMHA, I am
testifying today on behialf of the Mental Health Law Projeot, National Alliance
for the Mentally Ill, National Associfation of State Mental Health Progran
Directors and the National Council of Community Mental Health Centers.

Today I will disouss the need for improved Madicare coverage of mental
health services, in the context of S 1127, Catastrophio Illness Coverage
legislation. I will be addressing both the need to improve the basic mental
health Medicare benefit and issues specific to S 1127 and HR 2470, the
coaparable House bill.

Discussing inproved mental health coverage under Medicare in the context
of catastrophic insuranco certainly makes eminent sense to consuuers, for whea
2 major mental illness very quickly becomes a finanofal catasfrophe. For
anyone with a serious mental illness, Medicare provides suoh limited
reimbursement for essential services that one quickly finds oneself faced with
substantial out-of-pocket expenditures.

While we recognize the concera that has been raised about finanoing basio
Madicare benefits, such as improved mental health coverage, through the presiua
increase authorized under S 1127, and we recognize that it would be prclsrable
to pay for this improved coverage through the normal financing mechani=ma of
Medicare, we nonetheless recommend that thess changes be made through S 1127,

The principle that basic Medicare changes should not be made on S 1127 has

4
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already bsen broached in both the House and Senate versions of the catastrophic

insurance bill since other changes to basic Medicare coverago, such as hoze ~
health care and prescription drugs are also being dealt with in the context of

S 1127 and HR 2470. As long as this is the case, all changes to basic Medicare

policies should be made in the same bill. We would object strenucusly to an

approach which separated out Medicare mental health improvexzents for later

action {possibly) on Budget Reconciliation. In our experience, deferred too

often means deleted wheon appliod to legislation expanding mental health

sarvices.

Our highest priority is for improvement in outpatient mental health
benefits. We applaud efforts by meabers of this Cazmitteo to sddress this
need. S 1209, introduced by Senmator Durenberger expands coverage for both
routine physician visits and for psychotherapy and S 718, ingroduced by Senator
Mat sunaga increases the outpatient limit on mental health services. The House
is also antinz on legislation to improve the outpatient mental health limit
(Ways and Means Ccumittee bill) and to expand coverage of routine physician
visivs and increass the psychotherapy benefit (Energy und Cocmerce version of
the bill). Unfortunately, dospite these changes, Msdicare will still include
inappropriate incentives for inpatient care, even when that may not bs the best
locus of care in a given caso, and certainly not the least costly. We will
therefore suggest changes to Part A to encourage tho use of partial
hospitalization programs, as woll as adjustsents to the inpatient benefic under
s 1127,

There i3 no need to explain to members of this subcoamittee that the
statutory 1imits on Medicare reizbursement and coverage discriminate against
people with mental illness. You are well aware of the $250 limit on outpatient

treatzent of "mental, psychoneurotio and personality disorders™ and the
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lifetimo limit of 190 days of care in a pacyhiatric hospital. These linits
violate concepts of equity by treating serious mental {llness as .¢3ss
significant or important than physical ailments. In addition, as with most
discrimination, it is costly and shortsighted. My testinmony urges you to take
the initiative tc ond or, at a minimum, azeliorate the discrimination in
coverage and reimbursezent.

Hedicare pental health policy encourages institutional care, discourages
early intervention, and fails to cover the types of services which research
shows are nost effoctive at keeping individuals cut of hospitals and
functioning at their optinuws level. In part, this deficiency is an accident of
history, in that when Medicare was first enacted over 20 years ago, our
attitude about mental illness treatment was significantly different. But while
wo have made enorzous strides in the treatment of mental fllness over the past
two decades, Medicare mental health benefits have never been revized.

The current interest in catastrophic insurance allows us to re-exasine
nental health benefits unier Medicare froa the perspective of the siderly and
disabled people who are spanding considerable resources on health care.

It is extrezsely heartening to the MiA and to the other organizations which
I represent today to see a unanimity developing in Congress that mental health
benefits under Medicare are an issue which cust be addressed. We have worked
many years for this day. For too long, those suffering from a cental disorder
have found the sarvices which they need to cope with or recover frca their
illness deaied thea on the basis of misconceived and outdated linmits on

services which bear no relationship to good mental health treatment practices.
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Provalence of Mantal Illness Asong Elderly znd Disabled

Bsfore discussing in more detail tho inadequacies of Medicare coverage and

rocaznondations for improvezent, let ne first give you acme statistics about

the prevalenco of mental {llness in the Medicare population:

¢ Fifteon to twenty-five percent of elderly persouns experience
significant nental health probleas;

® Nearly one out of four of all “‘eported suiocides are by persons 60 years
or older. The death rate from sulcide azong the elderly is 1=1/2 times
the rate for all ages;

® The likelihood of psychosis increases significantly after ago 65 --
even noro 30 beyond 75 —. and is nore than twice as cezzon in the over-75
2ga group as in the 25-3% year olds.

® azong tho threo nmillion disabled people on the Sooial Security
Disability rolls, who also receive Medicare benefits, an estizated 117 are
nentally i1l -~ 300,000 people. And if you are faziliar with the
standards for dotermining mental impairzent used by SSA, you know these
300,000 souls aro soverely and permanently disabled to the point that any
gainful eaployzent is impossible. Certainly without adoquate and
appropriate zental health services, the montally 111 on the DJF rolls will
reczain there, continuing to draw disability payments and unabdle to return

to produotive ezployzent.

Hedicare Coverage for Mental Health Services

Despite the obvious need for mental hoalth services for elderly and

disabled poople, Medicare discriminates sgainst people with mental fllness, not

O
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through sdsinistrative or arbitrary rogulatory policy drawn up in the vast HHS

bureaucracy, but through the language uritten into the law.
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Nearly 10 years ago, in its report to the Preslduat’s Commissiou on Mental
Health, the Task Panel on Mental Health of the Elderly ooncluded: "Existing
polioies in Msdicare speoifically, have tended to foster inpatient psychiatric
treatmant wit:hout adequate support for outpatient, day care, or ongoing
rehabilitative services....Current limitations....have proven to be
shortsighted, inequitable and costly. Inpatient health and mental health
ssrvices are often used wt;en outpatient mental health care would be nmore
appropriate and less expensive....The availability of ambulatory or day care
based mental health services has the potential for reversing developing
disabilities and keeping thea from becoming permanent. Yet unless there is an
adequate source of funding for these services, their potential will remain
unfulfilled. (Dopartment of Health, Education and Welfare, Mental Health and
the Elderly: Reoommendations r Action, the Report of the President's
Cranission on Mental Hoalth: Tast 1inel on the Elderly and The Secretary's
Coumittee cn Montal Health and Illness of the Elderly. DHEW Publication #30-
20960)

Thess conclusions are as apt today as in 1978. .y addition, there are
other policies and praotices which discourage appropriate treatment.

® Hospital-based partial hospitalization services (day treatment or

ovaraight care) are covered, but the same services whea furnished through

a provider other than a hospital are not reimbursable.

® Sorvices of a reb.dilitative nature are not covered at all, despite

their proven effectiveness in maintaining seriously mentally i1l

individuals 11:: the comnunity and avoiding expensive hospital care.

®# Outpatient prescription drugs are not covered, which causes major

problems for serionsly mentally ill people who must have expensive

psychotropio drugs to combat the active symptoms of their illnesses.

Q 55
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Medicare policy does, however, permit scme flexibility within these
linits, For example, a recent change in Health Care Finanecing Adwministration
policy allows Phy:zicians to bill for medical services to patients with
Alzheioer's disease without regard to the linit on mental health care, although
psychotherapy for such patients is still subject to the 4250 limit. As
research evidence gathers on the Liological base of zmental illnesses (such as
the recent identification of the gene associated with manic-depressive
illness), the arguments for further expansions of mental health treatzent
sinilar to this Alzheizer's coverage are strengthened.

Furthernore, patients using organized connunity settings, such as
cczaunity mental health centers, have benefited from the ™incident to®? rule,
which authorizes services (without regard to the outpatient reimbursement
linit) of nurses and other health professionals when furnished incident to
services of a physician. Under this rule, current Medicare policy allows
reiobursesent of psychologists, psychiatric nurses and social workers when
Provided incident to a physician's services. Conaunity mental health centers
and other organized care settings have used this rule to provide essential
treatment to elderly and disabled clients, although the physician service
renzains subject to the Part B limit.

However, these policies, while they permit coverage of certain mental
health services, do not begin to ccapensate for the basic thrust of the
Program, which is to cover inpatient general hospital care, and marginal,

traditional and limited outpatier* psychotherapy.
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Consequences of Medicare's Inadequate Mental Health Coverage

Becauss Medicare fails to provide adequately for the necds of elderly and
disabled Americans with mental illnesses, the public has to pay in other ways.

Elderly people, for example, occupy 30 percent of all public mental
hospital beds and conservative estimates place the percentage of nursing home
residents with a primary or secondary diagnosis of mental illness (including
dezentia) at TO percent. Many of these individuals are inappropriately placed
in these institutional settings.

The State of Minnesota recently eutimated that a majority (89 percent) of
its elderly citizens with a diagnosis of mental illness are living in nursing
hoses. The state further estimated that approximately 30 percent of these
people could have avoided nursing heme care if sufficient coamunity support
were available. Another 10-20 percent of those already in nursing homes might
be suitable for community placement with extended services. Preswning that
Minnesota is not atypical, revised Medicare policy which encourages early
intervention and appropriate community services could reduce institutional
costs, particularly under Medicald, while greatly enhancing the quality of life
for those now institutionalized.

Lack of roney and inadequate {hdicare coverage also leads people to forego
needed care. For example, there are estinates that 25 percent Jf those elderly
persons deternined to be "senile™ actually have treatable, reversible mental
health conditions. The elderly poor without other insurance also average only
4.2 physician visits and 8.7 prescription drugs a year coapared to 6.5
physician visits and 12.2 prescription drugs for the elderly who have Medi-gap

insurance. Much is made of the fact that Medicare covers only 45 percent of

the elderly's average health care bill. For mental health care services, this

percentage is significantly lower.
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Many patients in need of outpatient mental health services inappropriately

use other Medicare bsnefits, thus costing the systea unknown amounts in other‘

expenditures. Psychiatric and mental health interventions have been shown to

reduce the use of other medical and surgical services. By ignoring and failing

to treat the patient's mental health needs, we do not eliminate those needs;

they merely show up in other ways as patients report physical Synptcas

resulting from undiagnosed mental stress. There have been numerous studies of

the cost-offsets achieved by providing mental health services, most notably:
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8 A quantitative review was made by Mmford et al. of 34 controlled

studies of the effects of psychological interventions on recovery of
persons who had recently suffered a heart attack or were facing surgery.
The data showed these interventions producing large effects in terms of
speeding recovery, decreasing requiresents for analgesic and sleeping
nedication, and shortening hospital atays.

® A study of Blue Cross-Blue Shield federal enployees program found that
after a diagnosis of a chronic medical disease, thoss patiants who began
psychotherapy used 56 percent less medical services than a group with the
same disease who didn't receive therapy. The savings are usually in
hospital costs: preventing hospital admissions or shortening stays.

® A review of the effect of psychotherapy on utilization of other medical
care showed the average effect to be a reduction in utilization of 20
percent.

* A study of psychiatric intervention in the postoporalive course of
elderly female patients requiring surgery for fractured hips showed that
psychiatric consultation and liaison services led to a dollar benefit of

almost $200,000 over the cost of the psychiatrist in one year.
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* A series of cost-effective studies begun in the 1950s in West Germany

was critical in persuading the national health insurance system in that
country to include a 250-visit outpatient mental health benefit with a

systen of prospective approval and peer review.

Recozmendations:

We would like to recommend placing mental health services in Msdicare on
the same basis as all other benefits. However, we recognize that a proposal
like that would not be seriously considered in this fiscal climate. Therefore,
we recauzend expanded but still limited outpat.ent benefits which represent a

realistic response to the needs of Medicare beneficiaries who are nentally {ll.

Outpatient Benefits
As stated earlier, our highest priority is for improvements to the

outpatient mental hoalth benefit. We urge a package of outpatient reforas which
has been endorsed by all of the organizations for which I am testifying today
and also by the American “sya.tatric Association and Anerican Psychological

Assocation. Specifically:

* Routine physician visits for purposes of nonitoring the patient's
condition, particularly the zmon. .ring of medications and their side
effects but specifically excluding psychotherapy, be covered on the same

basis as any other physician visit for any other illness, and
L Psychotherapy be a covered services for up to 25 visits per year.

These changes have already been included in the Energy and Cocmerce

Comzittee version of the House catastrophic insurance bill, HR 2470.
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The coverage of routine physician visits, scmetimes termed medical
management, removes a hishly discrinminatory restriction from the law--one that
could also be potentially dangerous for patients on psychotropic madications,
many of which have very serious side effects. Currently, visits to physicians
for medication monitoring fall within the $250 cap. Removing the cap from
these visits would allow physicians to closely monitor potentially toxic
medications as closely as good nedical practice dictates, without arbitrary

linits which have no medical baasis.

The other change that we urge would alter the limit on outpatient
psychotherapy from a dollar 1imit (cuwrrently $250, under S 1209, $1,215 and
under S 718 and HR 2570 $1,000) to a visit limit of 25 visits per year.
According to CBO, 25 visits i3 an equivalent benefit to the $1,000 cap. The
advantage of this change for patients is two-fold. First, and most
importantly, it protects beneficiaries against inflation. It is now more than
20 years since che original $250 1imit on psychiatric care was enacted, and no
adjustment has been made in that limit for the entire 20 years. The rate of
inflation during that period of time, means that the original $250 now has the
purchasing power of only $57! Indeed, raising the limit to $1,000 (or 25
visits) still leaves beneficiaries a little short of a benefit which is
equivalent to the original coverage. A shift to a limit on visits avoids this
problea in the future, and it is an approach increasingly being adopted by
states as they regulate health insurance coverage for mental illnesses. A
second advantage of shifting to a visit linmit is that patients can more easily
keep track of the benefit and how much of it has been "spent™ and hcv much more

resains available to them.
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Part A Coverage

In addition to the changes to outpatient benefits described above, the
organizations I am testifying for today also urge the following policy

regarding Part A services:

® That the unlimited coverge of psychiatric services in a general hospital,
which is now included in S 1127, be changed to a 75-day-a-year limit for
psychiatric services in both general hospitals and in psychiatric
hospitals, thus eliminating the current 190 day lifetime limit on

psychiatric hospital services.

® Coverage beyond the 75 day limit should be provided if found necessary
through medical necessity reviews, in a manner similar tc¢ the current

CHAMPUS progran.

® Reimbursement for inpatient services should be made only for patients

receiving active treatment.

® A new benefit of partial hospitalization services, when furnished through
a hospital, community mental health center or oicher qualified provider,
should be added, with a trade-off of three days of partial hospitalization

services for each day of inpatient care under the above annual 1lim.t.

These proposed changes to the Par* .. inpatient section would eliminate the
current 190-day lizit on care in a psychiatric hospital and establish instead a
reasonable inpatiex* limit on psychiatric services in all settings. Such a
limit further allows for a trade-off mechanism between 24-hour-a-day inpat..nt
stays and partial hospitalization services. Finally, the inpatient limit we

propose should provide savings to the Medicare progran.

-«
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The major benefit for patien;s froa these changes, however, would be the
coverage of partial hospitalizatica services, which arc frequently a very
effective alternative to inpatient care. Partial hospitalization programs
provide day services for patients who continue to live in the community, or
evsning and night services for patients who are able to leave the hospital
during the day. The costs of partial hospitalization, according to data
ccmpiled by the National Institute of Mental Health are generally about one
third as expensive as a 23-hour-a-day inpatient stay. For example, at the
Psychiatric Institute here in Washington D.C., partial hospitalization services
cost $215 for an intensive day jrogram and $139 for an intermediate program,
compared to inpatient rates of $579-4722. Under the CHAMPUS progranm, partial
hospitalization costs $58 & full day ($40 for night care) compared with $264

for an inpatient day.

Coverage of Pre3cription Drugs

Medications for mental illnesses should be covered to the same extent that
they are covered for any other illness. We strongly support a change to S 121
to include coverage of medications for all Medicare beneficiaries under a

catastrophic plan.

Limitations on Catastrophic Costs

Finally we would 1ike to address an issue which is raised in the House
bill, whereby only the ratient's first $250 in out-of-pocket costs for covered
mental health services would count towards the catastrophic trigger. We find
this provision highly discriminatory. Clearly, copayments for covered mental
health services drain an individual's resotvcces Jjust as much as equivalent

copayments for other Hedicare services. W¥e can see no reason to make this
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distinotion, and urge this committee not to adopt such a policy as improvezents
are xade in Medicare mental health benefits.

Mr. Chairman, as your subcommittee studies ways to address the costs of
catastrophio -111nea.~_!, we urge you to moderate the discrimination in ourrent
law. Medicare's restriotions prevent both elderly individuals with acute
probleas, and elderly and disabled people with chronic mental illnesses frea
receiving the range of seryices they need in the mos’t appropriate settings.
The result is unnecessary, costly and restriotive forms of inpatient hospital
or nursipg home care.

We ask you to oonsider our recommendations for enhanoiug outpatient day
treataent and inpatient coverage for mentally ill Medicare beneficiaries. We
believe they are reasonahle and realistio. They do not entirely eliminate the
hiastorio and w..enable inequity in the law. But they do ostablish a workable
set of benefits that rapresent a signifioant improvement over existing law
without adding substantial cost to the bill. Your Committee has the
opportunity to design legislation that truly will improve the lives of millions
of Medicare beneficiaries who are mentally ill.

Thank you Mr. Chairman..
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STATEMENT OF MALCOLM STRICKLER, ADMINISTRATOR,
FRIENDS HOSPITAL, PHILADELPHIA, PA, ON BEHALF OF THE
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PRIVATE PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITALS

Mr. StriCKLER. Mr. Chairman, I am Malcolm Strickler, Adminis-
trator of the country’s oldest private psychiatric hospital, Friends
Hospital, in which more than 40 percent of our patient population
is Medicare.

As President of the National Association of Private Psychiatric
Hospitals, I want to ti.auk you for this opportunity to testify before
the Senate Finance Committee’s Health Subcommit ‘ce on the need
to improve both inpatient and outpatient psychiatric benefits
under Medicare.

Our written statements reviews the various Medicare outpatient
psychiatric proposals being considered by this committee and the
House. NAPPH strongly supports the need to expand the outpa-
tient benefit which has not been improved since the beginning of
Medicare in 1965.

We make the following recommendations regarding the outpa-
tient psychiatric benefit under Medicare:

First, establish 25 visits annually for psychotherapy services;

Second, exempt medi~al management for mental disoruers from
the 25 visit limit and 1¢-  burse these services ir the same manner
as all other physician ¢z ., and,

Third, all deductibles and copayments incurred with respect to a
covered mental illness should be counted toward the limit for out-
of-pocket costs in the committee’s catastrophic bill.

Mr. Chairman, most of the discussion up to this point hes fo-
cused on outpatient care under Medicare. Although it is clear that
the present outpatient psychiatric benefit is woefully inadequate in
t- day’s world and must be improved, it is our contention that the
fll continuum of services from inpatient to partial hospitalization
to outpatient care must be a part of the committee’s legislative
package if we wish to assure that Medicare beneficiaries receive
the appropriate level of care © he least costly setting. The current
inpatient and outpatient psycaiatric benefit creates incentives to
treat people based on reimbursement policies rather than on what
is clinically most appropriate. And this leads to severe distortions
in the cost per beneficiary.

Under the Medicare program at this time, inpatient psychiatric
care in. a specialty psychiatric hospital is limited to 190 days during
the Medicare beneficiary’s lifetime, while psychiatric care provided
in a general hospital has the limits that apply to inpatient care for
other illnesses. The 190-day Jifetime limit w s enacted when State
hospitals was the primary se_ung for psychiatric care, and many
patients stayed for long periods of time. Now there are literally
hundreds of private psychiatric hospitals, partial hospitalization
projrams, and other treatment options that specialize in the active
treatment of serious mental illness.

Today, all of psychiatry and private psychiatric hospitals in par-
ticular, is using more aggressive and effective forms of treatment
than were available when Medicare was created. The 190-day life-

64
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time limit has become an outmoded and unnecessary restriction to
highly effective psychiatric hospital care.

One of the strongest arguments in favor of repealing the 190-day
lifetime limit is that very few of Medicare’s 31 million beneficiaries
have actually exhausted their lifetime limits, However, those per-
sons who have reached this arbitrary limit a*e the most seriously
ill and have a truly catastrophic illness.

The limit denies these truly needed beneficiaries access to criti-
cal services to which during acute episodes they are entitled under
the philosophy of the Medicare program.

NAPPH’s long-standing policy has been to eliminate the 190-day
lifetime limit. We believe that the repeal of this limit is long over-
due. There are presently in place controls to assure that overutili-
zation of inpatient psychiatric hospital care will not occur. And we
discuss those controls in detail in our written statement. However,
we do recognize that there may be some concern that these con-
trols are not sufficient. 7 aerefor., NAPPH would recommend, one,
a 90-day annual limit w,th medical review for continued care to be
applied to inpatient psychiatric treatment instead of the 190-day
lifetime; and, two, the establishment of a partial hospitalization
benefit under Part A with a tradeoff of two partial hospitalization
days for one inpatient. day taken off the annual limit.

The second recommendation will provide a level of care for those
who do not need the intensive environment of the inpatient setting
at significantly lower cost to all of us taxpayers.

Mr. Chairman, thank you again for giving us this opportunity to
present our views on psychiatric care under Medicare. We look for-
ward to working with you and the committee as you move forward
on this most important matter. I would be pleased to answer ques-
tions.

Senator MiTcHELL. Thank you, Mr. Strickler.

Mr. Spielrian.

[The prepared written statement of Mr. Strickler follows:)

1
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Malcolm D.
strickler and I am the Administrator of Friends Hospital in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania -~ a non-profit private psychiatric
hospital. I am also the President of the National Association of
private Psychiatric Hospitals, which represents over 258
nongovernmental, private psychiatric hospitals nationwide. On
behalf of NAPPH I want to thank you for this opportunity to testify
before the Senate Finance Committee on the need to improve the
inpatient and outpatient psychiatric benefit under Medicare. Mr.
Chairman, on March 19, NAPPH, the American Psychiatric Association,
and the National Alliance for the Mentally I11 presented testimony
before this committee on the need for mental health care services
under Medicare. I will not review that information again today, but

would refer you to the March 19 testinony.

Mr. Chairman, I appear before you today encouraged that after 22
years of discriminatory coverage of psychiatric services under
Medicare we are on the brink of redressing some of the inadequacies
in the mental illness benefit. As you know, the House Ways and
Means' Committee has proposed raising the outpatient psychiatric
benefit from the originai 1965 $25¢ level to $180€ annually as part
of their catastrophic heslth insurance legislation. Moreover, just
last week, the House End:gy nnd Commerce's Health and Environment
Subcommittee reported out its version of catastrophic health care,
which would allow 25 outpatient psychiatric visits annually instead

of the $1888 annual limit included in the Ways and Means' package.

O
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In addition, the bill \ ould exempt medical managepent of mental
disorders from the annual visit limit and would subject these
services to the same copayments as other physiclan care. These
positive steps in dealing with the Medicare psychlatric benefit do
not stop in the House. Several distinguished members of this
committee, Zncluding you, Mr. Chairman, Senstor Matsunaga, and
Senator Durenberger have all developed proposals to improve mental
health coverage under Medicare. I salute your concern and
understanding of the mental health needs of all Americans. I would
now like to summarize each of these proposals and then make our

reconmendations.

Sepator Matsunaga's Bi11 (S.7)8)

Senator Matsunaga's bill would provide coverage for outpatient
psychiatric care on the same basis as other physical illnesises under
the Medicare program. Currently Medicare only allows $588 in
charges for outpatient psychiatric services and reimburses 58% of
that amount, that is, $258 annually. We strongly support an end to
discrimination between mental illness and physical illness coverage
for hoth outpatient and inpatiegt care. This legislation, S.718,
addresses the outpatient portion of the psychiatric benefit.

Senator Durenberger's Bi11 (S5,1289)

Senator Durenberger's bill would establish a varied copayment

-
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system based on the number of visits a Medicare beneficiary receives
for psychotherapy services. Visits 1-5 would .ave a 20% copayment,
visits 6-28 would have a 58% copayment, and visits 21-38 would have
an 0% copayment. The benefit would be capped at 38 visits or $27e8
in charges .nually. In addition, the bill would exempt medical
management of mental disorders from the 38 visit cap and would
subject these services to the same copayments as all other physician
care. Medical management of mental and addictive disorders includes
the monitoring of medication, assessment of current functioning and
progression of symptoms, ordering of laboratory tests and re-iewing

these tests, and mental status evaluation.

NAPPH strongly supports the two main componeats of this legislation.
First, the establishment of an annual visit limit instead of a
dollar limit is important because over a period of time inflation
will erode the value of a dollar limit, but this would not be true
for a visit limit. Also, a visit limit would be more easily
understood by medicare beneficiaries than a dollar .imit. Second,
the exemption of medical management would be important because these
services are no different than the services provided by other
medical professionals, and therefore should be paid in the same

manner as all other physician services.

The one concern that we do have with S.1209 is the varied copayment
structure. First, we believe that this type of copayment structure

would be administratively complex and confusing to the beneficiary.
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Second, althorjh we support the notion that individuals should be
encouraged to obtain care at the earliest stagus of the illness, the
legislation would penalize those persons who are the most seriously

ill and need the full 38 or more visits.

Senator Mitchel's Proposal

It is our understanding that Senator Mitchel's proposal would base
reimbursement on types of psychiatric diagnoses. It is ocur view
that this type of approach would be administratively complex and
confusing to the Medicare beneficiaries. We would agree, of course,
that Medicare should only pay for medically necessary services:
however, payment by diagnosis may arbitrarily exclude certain
medically necessary services. In addition, this t,pe of payment
system would provide incentives to use those diagnoses that would be

reimbursable under the catastrophic benefit.

NAPPH Jation for Outpatient Psychiatric C

After reviewing the various outpatient proposals that are currently
being considered by this commi:ztee and the House, and taking iato
consideration the financial constraints that we must operate

within, NAPPH would make the following recommendations:

1) Establish 25 visits annually for psychotherapy services;

2) Exempt medical management for mental disorders from the 25
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visit limit and reimburse these services in the same
manner as all other physician care:

3) All deductibles and copayments incurred with respect to a
covered mental illness should be counted towards the limit
for out-of-pocket costs in the committee's catastrophic

bill.

Mr. Chairman, most of the discussion np to this point has focused on
outpatient care under Medicare. Althcugh it is clear that the
present outpatient psychiatric benefit is woefully inadequate and
needs desperately to be improved, it is our contention that the full
continuum of services, from inpatient to partial hospitalization to
outpaticnt care must be part of the legislative package i orde: to
assure that Medicare beneficiarias receive the approp.iate level of
care in the least cogtly setting. The current inpatient and
outpatient psychiatric benefit creates incentives to treat people
based on reimbursem2nt policies rather than on what is clinically

most appropriate.

At the end of our statement we have included a table detailing
Medicare inpatient expenditures and discharges by types of inpatient
psychiatric settings. 1In addition, I would request thut an NAPPH
publication entitled "Using Inpatient Psychiatric Benefits Wisely,"”
which explains the different levels of care provided in the various

inpatient psychiatric settings, be included in the hearing record.

'y
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inatory 198-pay etime Limit

Mr. Chairman, there is an additional issue I would like to highlight
for your consideration, which deals with the Medicare 199-day
lifetime 1 uit for psychiatric hospital care. Under the Medicare
rrogram at this time, inpatient psychiatric care in a specialty
psychiatric nospital is limited tc 196-days during a Medicare .
beneficiary's lifetime, while psychiatric care provided in a general

hospital has the same limits as inpatient care for othei illnesses.

The 188-day lifetime limit was enacted when state hospitals were the

primary setting for psychiatric care and many patients stayed for

long periods of time. WNow there are hundreds of private psychiatric
hospitals, partial hospitalizat srograms, and other treatment

options that specialize in the & .ive treatment of gevere mental

illness. Today, all of psychiatry -- and private psychiatric

hospitals in particular -- are using more aggressive and effective

forms of treatment. The 198-day lifetime limit has Eecome an

outnoded and unnecessary restriction to the highly effective

psychiatric hospital care.

NAPPH's long-standing policy has been to eliminate the 199~day
lifetimz limit. We believe that the repeal of this limit is long
overdue. There are presently in place controls to assure that
over-utilization of inpatient psychiatric hospital care will not
occnr. First, private psychiatric heospitals are presently paid by

Medicare on a per case limit (TEPRA) basis, which creates strong

6
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incentives to keep length of stays as short as appropriately
possible. According to NAPPH data, the average length of stay for
Medicare patients in our member hospitals in 1986 was 21.1 days,
down from 23.5 days repo.ted by HCFA for PY84. Second, there are
presently utilization controls through Professional Review
Organizations and other mechanisms. Third, each of the NAPPH
hospitals has admission criteria, immediate psychiatric assessment
on admission, and internal quality assurance programs. The lack of
a limit on psychiatric care provided in a general hospital creates
incentives to admit patients to this setting even though it may not

be the most appropriate for a patient's apecific needs.

One of the strongest arguments ip {avor of repealing the 198-day
lifetime limit is that very few of Medicare's 38 million
beneficiaries have actually exhausted their lifetime limits.
However, those persons who have reached this arbitrary limit are the
most seriously ill and have a truly catastrophic illness. The limit
denies these truly needy beneficiaries access to critical gervices.
As of December, 1985, there were 18,413 Medicare beneficiarizs who
have exhausted their 190-day lifetime limit. Each year it is
estimated that an additional’l,808 beneficiaries will reach the
196-day limit. Again, although these numbers may seer small, it is
important to point out that many of these persons are yqung
Americans who are eligible for Medicare through the Social Security

Disability Insurance Program (SSDI). Many of these persons suffer

from serious mental illness, and it is these most vpinerable

Fioy
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Medicare beneficiaries, who will need care periodica.ly throughout
their entire lives, that are most hurt by the 198-day lifetime
limit.

NAPPH_Recommendations fox Inpatient Psychiatric Care .
while we submit that there are adeqguate controls to avoid
unnecessary hospitalizetion, we do recognize that there may be somt
concern that these controls are not sufficient. Therefore, NAPPH
would recommend:

(1) a 98-day annual limit with medical review for continued
care to be applied to inpatient psychiatric treatment
instead of the 198-day lifetime limit.

(2) the establishment of & partial hospitalization benefit
under Part A with a "trade-off" of two partial
hospitalization days for one inpatient day off the annual

limit.

The combination of an annual limit and the partial hospitalization
benefit would provide Medicare beneficiaries who suffer from mental
illness with a continuum of services that could be tailored to their
specific needs. Patients would no longer receive care based on who
gets paid, but rather on what care is the most clinically apprepriate

depending on the severity of illness and extent of impairment.

Por the mentally ill, a lifetime is much too long to have waited for

an adequate peychiatric benefit. Therefore, we would urge

O P
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the committec to seize this opportunity and make some meaningful

improvements to both the inpatient and outpatient psychiatric

benefit under the medicare program.

Mr. Chairman, thank you again for giving u this opportunity to
present our views on psychiatric care under Medicare. We look
forward o working with you and the committee as you move forward on

this most. important matter.
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DISTRIBUTION OF HOSPITALS, DISCHARGES, AND CHARGES BY TYPE OF HOSPITAL
(FY84 Medicare ~ patBills) [Reprinted}

Number og Number Billed charges
Avg. per
hospital Number Percent Dollars Percent )
Total, all hospitals 6,281 55 345,898 1909.9 $1,593.5 109.9
Psychiatric hospitals 435 148 64,368 18.6 434.5 27.3
Public 208 159 33,186 9.6 192.8 12.1 '
Proprictary (Private) 227 138 31,262 9.6 241.7 15.2
Not for Profit 84 148 12,459 3.6 162.4 6.4
For Profit 143 131 18,883 5.4 139.3 8.7
G:neral Hospitals 5,846 48 281,530 81.4 1,159.8 72.7
E enpt unit 84 635 173 109,685 31.7 534.3 33.5
Exempt unit 85 206 133 27,451 7.9 163.5 18.3
NonExernpt unit 431 111 47,896 13.8 183.8 11.5
No unit (scattered 4,574 21 96,498 27.9 278.2 17,5

beds)

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




73

Using Inpatient
Psychiatric
Benefits Wisely
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Introduction

Very few peoplewill ever need tobe
hospitalized fr mentalillness.
Most of the nearly 30 million
Americans suffering with this
slnesscan findhelp for acute
problems with less intensive
interventions than inpatient care.
Butif and when someone does
needhospitabization because of the
severity of theirillness,it’s
important to understand the options
available in theinpatient field. In
fact,most peopl, Judingthe

74

'Mental lliness and the Current Inpatient Delivery System

T e

| SR ¢
Outpatient  Halfway Partial Residentia)  [npatient
house hospitabzation hospitahization

Mustration 1: Treatment Settings Available
Based on Level of Impainaent

Mental Health show that 19 percent
of Amencans over the agy of18 (or
29.4 milion adults) suffer with
thisdiscise.

Emotional and developmental
disorders anige in about 12 mithon

insurers whoprovide benefits and
thepatients whorequire
treatm. nt—areunaware of the
veryrea' Jferences among
inpatien: »ttingsand are often
confused abouthow to select the
most appropriate one within the
continuum of available services.
The Nationsl Association of
Pnvate Psychiatne Hospital

children under the age of18,
according to the Ametican
Psychiatric Association These
disorders can seriously impar a
youngster's emotional and
intellectual des elopment and, Teft
untreated, may lead to chronie
hfelong mentalllness.

Even with these staggering

bers, fewer than one-fifth of

(NAPPH) has developed this
overview to identify therange and
scope of carc of vanious inpatient
providers, therr benefits,
andthe different levels of severity
ofllness eachisequippedto
handle.

Beyond that, we hopeto provide
abasis for more effective and

the nearly 30 million people who
struggle with mental illness seek
mental health services Many
attnbute thistoalack of
understanding about theirillness,
fear of social stigma, and

fusion about what tr is
avalable andhow to obtanit.
Thesefigures are especially
disturhing when dtothe

cffiaent use of pnvate psychiatne
hospitals as a central part of the
continuum of care.

An Overview
or Mental Hlness

Mentalillncssis one of the few
remaining taboo subjectsin our
society. No onewants tobelieve
that mentalillness can touch them
or their families. But statistics
from the National Institute of

way people deal with a physical
illness.

The factis mentalillnessis
treatable. Anr eatmentis
available.

A Spectrum
of Treatment Settings

There are a number of different
settings in which patientsrecen e
psychiatric care, ranging from

70

mentalhealth professionals’
officcs toany of a number of types
of hospitals. Where a patient wall
seceive servicesdependsona
number of factors. Ideally, the best
treatment setting for a patient
matches the seventy of illness with
theind'vidual patient’s needs. For
ex. iple,patients who arcinso
much emotional pain thatthey
can't function at work or at home
may require acute hospitalization
for a short time to provide a safe,
controlled environment in which
they canbe evaluated and treated.
Some patients will dobest in
private psychiatnc hospitals where
special considerations can be
made for age specific needs (for
Ie, school for adol ts)

and where highly trained and
skilled treatment teams are
involvedin treatment whichis
indiadualized for cach patient.

Different types of inpatient
settngs offer different servicesn
order to meet thenceds of the
patients that facihity servesbest.

Itisin the private psychiatric
hospital selting that the full array
of services within the continuum
of care is available to help
transition the patient out of the
hospital or prev T talization

altogether.

By far, the largest number of
peoplearc treated as outpatients.
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INustration 2: Percent Psychiatric Patients
in Three Settings

Inpatient hospitalization, 18%

Partial hospitalization, 5%

Outpatiestears, 77%

Of over 5 million paticnts treated forpsychiatric illness, 18%cre

il enough torequire hospitalization.

Far fewer requre the intensity of
otherlevels of care. For example, a
1986 study by the federal
government’s Alcohol, Drug Abuse
and Mental Health
Administration (ADAMHA)

later in this report. In any ofthese
settings, the critena for inpatient
treatment is not related to
Jiagmosis. A particular
psychiatric diagnosis does not

con slsunlly predict citherthe

p the out orthe

showed thatof 5 6 milian ep
of care, 18 percent wereill enough
to require inpatient hospitalization
or residential treatment. The vast
majority were able to use farless
intensive levelsofcare For
example, 77 percent used ovtpatient
careand 5 percent used parbial
hospital care.

Each of these settings playsan
imp t rolein the conti of
mental health care. But forthose
people whose itlness is senously
debiltating and often hife-

inunsily of servicesneeded 2
Insteaditis the degrecof
impairment or theseverity of
{llncss that willdetermine the
need for hospitalization Sotoothe
length of hospital stay is not related
to diagmosis, but tothe degree of
impairment and amount oftime
required to reduce the impairment.
Specialty hospital inparient
treatment isusedonlywhen
speaficentena are met. For
example, hospitahization would be

threatening, the availability of
specialty hospitahizationas
mandatory.
Inpatienthospitahization may
oceur in a variety of treatment
settings, from general hospital
bedsto specialty psychiatne
hospxm]s,’l‘he role of each of these
Lsettings will be detarled

2 8 UdingPsychiateic Benefits Wisely
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ded when people are so
se nously disturbed that b v
threatento harm themselves, when
thesr emotional problems prevent
them from carrying out basic daily
requirements such as performng
at theirjob or carmying out duties at
home, when they cannot be treated
atalowerlevel of

care, of when they fulto rexpond
afterrepeated attemptstouseless
intensivelevelsof care,

Becausethey servea senous)y
Areah), J L INY

settings Ladde awide vanely of
bl Within the inf t
sector, arange of health care
settingshave developed, each
filingaunique role, Itisthe
differences among these settings
(including whether thereis
expectation for ¢ patient’s
improvement, different levelsof
scverity ofillness, different
environments and types of
treatment modalities) that willbe
focusedon throughout the
remainder of this paper.

The Inpatient Psychiatric
Delivery System
The differences among kinds of
inpatient psychiatnic hospatalsis
much greaterthanthat seenin
most ofthe general medicaland
surncal system, This degree of
sariance can be attributed
pnmanly to the very diversenecds
ofthementallys? Speciality
psychiatnchospitals servea
umque clientele and play arole
which cannot be simply
transferred to outpatient chmics or
general hospital setings.S
Thenpatient psychiatne
delivery system covers & wide
spectrum of public and private
facilities,

NAPPH Specialty Hospitals

In the United States there are
approximately 250 psychiatric
specialty nospitals which have met
the ngorous definition and criteria
of the National Association of
Private Psychiatric Hospitals
(NAPPH) as to what constitutes a
psychiatric specialty hospital.
Tobe eligble for membership,

b
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thosespecialty hospitals must have
fully trained psychiatristsin
charge of patient care. Thefacility
must provide active treatment Lo all
patients—thatis, treatment thet
canbe expectedtoresultin -
improvementina patient’s
condition. All active member
NAPPH hospitals are accredited by
the Joint Commission on
Accreditation of Hospitals tJCAIT),
the arbiter of hospital Quahity. In
addition to requinng JCAH
certification, NAPPH member
hospitals are alsosurveyed by
NAPPH clinical staf{f before their
application is considered. NAPPI{
is the only hospital association that
surveys its membership prior to
granting full merrbership,

NAPPI hospitals,
representing theoverw h
majority of elipble private
psychistric hospitals in the
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Ilustration 3: Direct Costs
of Mental Health Care

$722 million, NAPPH specialty hospitals
$3 5 billion, state mental hosgitals

. $3 6 bullion, general hospital psychiatric services

3191 billion total, Q

Specially psychiatric hospitals use only 3.7 percent of total mental
health resources. Because patients are carefully screened, only
those tralyneeding this intensily of services are treated. Specially
psychiatrichosptials provide a full range of highly specialized,
medically supcrvised psychiatric programs.

Trends and Coneerns

Oneofthe most significant
changesinthe delivery of
psychiatrienpatient care hasbeen
an expansion of the role played by
short-term general hospitalsin the
treatment of milder forms of

country,are alsodistinguished by
meeting specialrequirements of
the Federal governmenton
staffing. treatment planning,
treatment team concepts, and other
requirements.

Other Inpatient Settings

In addition to specialty psychiatrie
hospitals, there are over 2,500
gencralhospital psychiatricunits.
Thisnumber includes nearly 900
organized units with psychiatrie
stafl. There arcover 1,500
unorganized units (or “wings®)
often staffed by general hospital
personnel,

Ancther 4,500 general hospitals
provide mental health care without
any designated psychiatric beds,
accepting patientsinto “scatter
beds” staffed by general health
ware practitioners and nurses.

There are also 218 state and
county facihities in the publhie
sector.

psychiatriciliness. This hasbeen
prompted by a lessening of stigma
and more awareness of the value of
earlytreatment.d

Thenumber of psychiatne
units in general hospitals hasbeen
inereasing dramatically. There
was, for examp's, 2 26 percent
increase in separate psychietrie
units between Apriland October
1986, a continuation of a trend
begunin1983,

However,asindicatedina
variety of studies, short-term
general hospitals may notbe

INlustration 4: Growth in Psychiatric Units
in General Hospita:3,1985-198€

Number
of
.\' 0
ewBeds F Total new beds intreased
from 1,891 t02,430
2,000
Unorganized
units
1,000 5
e ———————
Organized
Units
October 1985 Apnl 1986 October 1986

The number of psychiatric unitsan gen.ralospitals has beenincreas-

1ng dranatically. There was, for example, a 26 percent increasein
separaie payaatric anits between Aipril and October 1986, a continu-

ationof atrendbegunin 1983,

ACGuldeteDuflcrens cainl'sychlatric Hospitalitation Settlrgs o 3
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time limit has become an outmodea and unnecessary restriction to
highly effective psychiatric hospital care.

One of the strongest arguments in favor of repealing the 190-day
lifetime limit is that ve.y few of Medicare's 31 million beneficiaries
have actually exhausted their lifetime limits. However, those per-
sons who have reached this arbitrary limit are the most seriously
ill and have a truly catcstrophic illness.

The limit denies these truly needed beneficiaries access to criti-
cal services to which during acute episodes thzy are entitled under
the philosophy of the Medicare program.

NAPPH's long-standing policy has been to eliminate the 190-day
lifetime limit. We believe that the repeal of this limit is long over-
due. There are presently in place controls to assure that overutili-
zation of inpatient psychiatric hospital care will not occur. And we
discuss those controls in detail in our written statement. However,
we do recognize that there may be some concern that these con-
trols are not sufficient. Therefore, NAPPH would recommend, one,
a 90-day annual limit with medical review for continued care to be
applied to inpatient psychiatric treatment instead of the 190-day
lifetime; and, two, ‘he establishment of a partial hospitalization
benefit under Part A witls a tradeoff of two partial hespitalization
days for one inpatient dsy taken off the annual limit.

The second recommendation will provide a level of care for those
who do rov steed the intensive environment of the inpatient setting
at significantly lower cost to all of us taxpayers.

Mr. Chairnan, thank you again for giving us this opportunity to
present our vicws v psychiatric care under Medicare. We look for-
ward to working with yov and the committee as you move forward
on this most important matter. I would be pleased to answer ques-
tions.

Senator MiTcHELL. Thank you, Mr. Strickler.

Mr. Spielman.

[The prepared written statement of Mr. Strickler follows:]

16-657 0 - 87 - 3
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Malcolm D.
Strickler and I am the Administrator of Friends Hospital in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania -- a non-prof it private psychiatric
hospital. I am also the President of the National Association of
Private Psychiatric Hospitals., which represents vver 258
nongovernmental., private psychiatric hospitals nationwide. ©On
behal £ of NAPPH I want to thank you for this opportunity to testify
before the Senate Finance Committee on the need to improve the
inpatient and outpatient psychiatric benefit under Medicare. Mr.
Chairman, on March 19, NAPPH, the American Psychic.ric Association,
and the National Alliance for the Mentally Il). presented testimony
before this committee on the need far mental health care services
under Medicare. I will not review that information again today, but

would refer you to the March 19 testimony.

Mr. Chairman, I appear before you today encouraged that after 72
years of discriminatory coverage of psychiatric services under
Medicare we are on the brink of redressing some of the inadequacies
in the mental illness benefit. As you know., the House Woys and
Means' Committee has proposed raising the ortpatient psychlatric
beneiit from the original 1965 $250 level to $1969 annually as part
of their catastrophic healtb insurance legislation. Moreovcr, just
last week, the House Energy and Commerce's Health and Environment
Subcommittee reported out its version of catastrophic health care,
which would allow 25 outpatient psychi.tric visits annually instead

of the 51888 annual limit jincluded in the Ways and Means' package.

1
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In addition, the bill would exempt medical management of mental
disorders from the annual visic limit and would subject these
services to the same copayments as other physician care. These
positive steps in dealing with the Medicare psychiatric benefit do
not stop in the House. Several distinguished members of this
committee, including you, Mr. Chairman, Senato:r Matsunaga, and
Senator Durenberger have all developed proposaiz te improve mental
health coverage under Medicare. I salute your <oncern and
understanding of the mental health needs of all Americane. I would
now like to suamarize each of these proposals and then make our

recommendations.

Senator Matsunaga's Bill (S,718)

Senater Matsunaga's bill would provide coverage for outpatient
psychiatric care on the same basis as other physical illnesses under
the Medicare program. Currently Yedicare only allows $588 in
charges for outpatient psychiatric services and reimburses 58% of
that amount, that is, $256 annually. We strongly support an end to
discrimination between mental illneus and physical i{llness coverage
for hoth outpatient and inpatiegt care. This legislation, §.718,
addresses the outpatient portion of the psychiatric benefit.

Senator Durenberger's Bill (S,1289)

Senator Durenberger's bill would establish a varied copayment

2
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system based on the number of visits a Medicare beneficiary receives
for psychotherapy services. Visits 1-5 would have a 2% copayment,

visits 6-28 would have a 58% copayment, and visits 2:-38 would have

an 86% copayment. The benefit would be capped at 38 visits or $2730

in charges annually. In addition, the bill would exempt medical
management of mental disorders from the 38 visit cap and would
subject these services to the same copayments as all other physician
care. Medical management of mental and addictive disorders includes
the monitoring of medication, assessment of current functioning and
progression of symptoms, ordering of laboratory tests and reviewing

these tests, and mental status evaluation.

NAPPH strongly supports the two main components of this legislation.
Pirst, the establishment of an annual visit limit instead of a
dollar limit is impecrtant because over a period of time irflation
wi.l erode the value of a dollar }imit, but this would not be true

for a visit limit. Also, a visi* limit would be more easily

understood by mecicare beneficiaries than a dollar limit. Second,
the exemption ¢ medical management would be important because these
services are no different than the services provided by other
med.cal professionals, and therefore should be paid in the same

manner as all other physician services.

The one concern that we do have with S5.1289 is the varied copayment
structure. Pirst, we believe that this type of copayment structuire

would be administratively ccmplex and confusing to the beneficiery.
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Second, although we support the notion that individuals should be
encouraged to obtain care at the earliest stages of the illness, the
legislation would penalize those persons who are the most seriously

i1}l and need the full 32 or more visits.

Sepator Mitchel's Proposal

It is our understanding tha% Senator Mitchel's proposal would base
reimbur~ement on types of psychiatric diagnoses. It is our view
that this type of approach would be administratively complex and
confusing to the Medicare beneficiaries. We would agree, of course,
that Med’care should only pay for medically necessary services:
however, payment by diagnosis may arbitrarily exclude certain
medically necessary services. In addition, this type of payment
system would provide incentives to use those diagnoses that would be

reimbursable urder the catastrophic benefit.

NAPPH_Recommendation for Outpatient Psychiatric Care

After reviewing the various outpatient proposals that are currently
being considered by %ais committee and the House, and taking into
consideration the financial constraints that we must operate

within, NAPPH would make the following recommendations:

1) Establish 25 vis!ts annually for psychotherapy services;

2) Exempt medical management for mental disorders from the 25

o S
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visit limit and reimburse these services in the same
manner as all other physician care:;

3) All deductibles and copayrents incurred with respect to a
covered mental illpess should be counted towards the limit
for out-of-pocket costs in the committee's catastrophic

bill.

Mr. Chairman, most of the discussion up to this point has focused on
outpatient care under Medicare. Although it is clear that the
present outpatient psychiatric benefit is woefully inadequate and
needs desperately to be improved, it is our contention that the full
continuum of services, from inpatient to partial hospitalization to
outpatient care must be part of the legislative package in order to
assure that Medicare beneficiaries receive the appropriate level of
care in the least costly setting. The current inpatient and
outpatient psychiatric besefit creates incentives to treat penple
besed ¢a reimbursem2nt policies rather than on what is clinically

most appropriate.

At the end of our statement we have included a tablc detailing
Medicare inpatient expenditures and discharges by types of inpatient
psychiatric settings. In addition, I weculd request that an NAPPH
publication entitled "Using Inpatient Psychiatric Benefits Wisely,”
which explains the different levels of care provided in the various

inpatient psychiatric settings, be included in the hearing record.
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Medicare's Discriminatory 198-Day Lifetime Limit

Mr. Chairman, there is an additional issue I would like to highlight
for your consideration, which deals with the Medicare 198-day
lifetime limxt for psychiatric hospital care. Under the Medicare
program at this time, inpatient psychiatric care in a specialty
psychiatric hospital is limited to 19f-acays during a Medicare
beneficiary's lifetime, while psychiatric care provided in a general
hospital has the same limits as inpatient care for other illnesses.
The ).98-day lifetime limit was enacted when state hospitals were the
primary setting for psychiatric care and many patients stayed for
long perivds of time. Now there are hundreds of private psychiatric
hospitals, partial hospitalization programs, and other treatment
options that specialize in the active treatment of gevere mental
illness. Today, all of psychiatry -- and pzivate psychiatric
hospitals in particular -- are using more aggressive and effective
forms of treatment. The 198-day lifetime limit has become an
outmoded and unnecessary restriction to the highly effective

psychiatric hospital care.

NAPPH's long-standing policy has been to eliminate the 198-day
lifetime limit. We believe that the repeal of this limit ig long
overdue. There are presently in place controls to assure that
over-utilizaticn of inpatient psychiatric hospital care will not
otcur. First, private psychiatric hogpitals are presently paid by

Medicare on a per case limit (TEPRA) basis, which creates strong
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incentives to keep length of stays as chort as appropriately
possible. According to NAPFH data, the average length of stay for
Medicare patients in our member hospitals in 1986 was 21.1 days,
down from 23.5 days reported by HCFA for FY84. Second, there are
presently utilization controls through Professional Review
Organizations and other mechanisms. Third, each of the NAPPH
hospitals has admission criteria, immediate psychiatric assessment
on admission, and internal quality assurance programs. The lack of
a limit on psychiatric care provided in a general hospital creates
incentives to admit patients to this setting even though it may not

be the most appropriate for a patient's specific needs.

One of *.ae strongest arquments in favor of ‘epealing the 198-day
lifetime 1limit is that very few of Medicare's 38 million
beneficiaries have actually exhausted their lifetime limits.
However, those persons who have reached this arbitrary limit are the
most seriously ill and have a truly catastrophic illness. The limit
denies these truly needy beneficiaries access to critical gervices.
As of Decemher, 1985, there were 18,413 Medicare beneficiaries who
have exhausced their 198-day lifetime limit. Each year it is
estimated that an additional’l,960 beneficiaries will reach the
198-day limit. Jgain, although these numbers may seem small, it is
’ important. to point out that many of these persons are yaung
2nrricans who are elig.ble for HMedicare through the Social Security
Disability Insurance Piodgram (SSDI). Many of these persons suffer
from serious mental illness, and it is Lhese most vulnerable




limit.

BAPPH Recommendations for Inpatient Psychiatric Care :
While we submit that there are adequate controls to avoid
unnecessary hospitalizgtion, we do recognize that there may be some .
concern that these contrcis a: not sufficient. Therefore, NAPPH
would recommend:
(1) a 98-day annual limit with medical review for continued
care to be applied to inpatient psychiatric treatment
instead of the 198-day lifetime limit.
(2) the establishment of a partial hospitalization benefit
under Patrt A with a "trade-off" of two pertial
hospitalization days for one inpatient du* off the annual
limit,

The combination of an annual limit and the partial hospitalization
benefit would provide Medicare beneficiaries who suffer from mental
illness with a continuum of services that could be tailored to thei~
specific needs. Patients would no longer receive care based on who
gets paid, but rather on what care is the most clinically appropriate

depending on the severity of illness and extent of impairment.

Por the mentally ill, a lifetime 55 much too long to have waited for

an adequate psychiatric benefit. Therefore, we would urge

90
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Medicare beneficiaries, who will need care periodically throughout
their entire lives, thalt are most hurt by the 198-day lifetime
|
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the committee to seize this opportunity and make some meaningful

improvements to botii the inpatient and outpatient psychiatric

benefit under the medicare program.

Mr. Chairman, thank you again for giving us thi: opportunity to
preser’ our views on psychiatric care under Medicare. We look
forward to working with you and the committee as you move forward on

this most important matter.
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DISTRIBUTION OF HOSPITALS, DISCHARGES, AND CHARGES BY TYPE OP HOSPITAL
(PY84 Medicare - PatBills) [Reprinted]
Number of Number Billed charges
Hospitais of Discharges Lin xillions)
Avg. per
hospital Number Percent Dollars Percent
Total, all hospitals 6,281 55 345,898 188.8 $1,593.5 1006.8
Psychiatric hospitals 435 148 64,368 18.6 434.5 27.3
Public 288 159 33,186 2.6 192.8 12.1
Proprietary (Private) 227 138 31,262 9.8 241.7 15.2
Not for Profit 84 148 12,459 3.6 182.4 6.4
For Profit 143 131 18,883 5.4 139.3 8.7
General Hospitals 5,846 48 281,538 8l.4 1,159.8  72.7
Exenpt unit 84 635 173 189,685 31.7 534.3 33.5
ExiLpt unit 85 286 133 27,451 7.9 163.5 108.3
NonExempt unit 431 111 47,896 13.8 183.8 11.5
No unit (scattered 4,574 21 96,498 27.9 278.2 17.5
beds)
l
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Introduction

Very few people will ever needtobe
hospitalized for mentalillness.
Most of thenearly 30 million
Amencans suffering with this
illness canfind helpforacute
problemswithless intensive
interventions than inpatient care.

But 1f and when someone does
need hospitalizationbecause of the
severity of their illness ¢'s
important to understand the options
availableinthe inpatient field.In
fact, most people—~including the
insurers whoprovidetenefits snd
the patients whe require
treatment—are unaware of the
very real differencesamong
inpauent settings and are often
confused sbout how toselect the
most appropriate one within the
continuurm of available services.

The National Association of
Private Psychiatrie Hospitals
(NAPPH)has developed this
overview toidentify therange and
scope of careof variousinpatient
providers, their economie benefits,
and the different levels of seventy
ofillness each is equipped to
hat fle,

Beyond that, we hope to provide
abasis for more effective and
efficient useof private psychiatne
hospitalsasa centralpartofthe
continuum of care.

An Overview
of Mental Illness

Mentalillness isone of the few
remainingtaboo subjects in our
society. Noone wantstobelieve
that mentalillness can touch them
or their families, But statistics
from the National Institute of
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' Méntal Illness and the Current Inpatient Delivery System
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Mustration 1: Treatment Scttings Available
Based on Level of Impairment

Mental [{ealih show that 19 percent
of Amencans over theage of 18 (or
29,4 million adults) suffer with
thisdisease.

Emotional and developmental
disorders arise in about 12 milhon
children under the ageof 18,
according tothe American
PsychiatrieAssociation. These
disorders can seriously impaira
youngster's emotional and
intellectual development and, le
untreated, may 1ead to chronie
lifelong mentaliliness.

Even with these staggering
numbers, fewer than one fifth of
the nearly 30 million people who
struggle with mental illness seek
mental health services. Many
attnbuie thisto alack of
understanding about their illness,
fear of social stigma,and
confusion about what treatmentis
available andhow toobtainit.
These figures are especially
disturbing when compared tothe
way people deal with a physical
illness.

Thefactis mentalillnessis
treatable. And treatment is
available,

A Spectrum
of Treatment Settings

There are 8 number of different
seftings in which patients receive
psychiatric care, ranging from

mental health professionals’
offices Lo any of a number of types
of hospitals. Where a patient wall
receive servicesdependsona
number of factors. Jdeally, the best
treatment setting for apatient
matches theseverity of liness with
the individual patient sneeds. For
example, patients whoarein so
much ¢ motional pain that they
can’t functionat workorathome
may require ncute hospitalization
for a short time to provide a safe,
controlled environment in which
they can be evaluated and treated.
Some patients will dobest in
private psychiatrie hospitals where
special considerations canbe
madefor age-specificneeds (for
cxample, schos) for adolessents)
andwhereh 3hly trainedand
skilled treatment teams are
involved intreatment which is
individualized for each patient.

Different types of inpatient
settings offer different servicesin
orderto meet theneedsof the
patients that facility serves best.

1tisin the private psychiatrie
hospital setting that the full array
of services within the continuum
of care is available to help
transition the patient out of the
hospit.d or prevent hospitalization
altogether.

By for, the largest number of
people aretreated as outpatients.
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IHustration 2: Percent Psychiatric Patients
in Thee Settings

Inpatient hospitalization, 18%

Partialhoapitatization, b «

Outpatient eare, 77%

Of over S million patients treated for psychiatric fliness, 18% were

ill enough to require hospitalization.

Farfewer require theintensity of
otherlevels of care. Forexample,a
1986 study by the federal
government’s Akohol, Drug Abuse
and Mental Health
Administration (ADAMHA)
showed that of 5 6 milizn episodes
of eare, 18 pereent were ill enough
torequire inpatient hospitalization
or residential treatment. The vast
majority were abletouse far less
intensive levels of care. For
example, 77 percent used putpatient
care and S percentused pi-tial
hospitaleared

Eachof thesesettings plays an
important role in the centi of

Taterin this report. In any of these
settings, the eriteria for inpatient
treatmentisnot related to
disgnosis. A particular

psychiatrie diagnosis doesnot
consistently predict cither the
prognosis, the cutcome, or the
intensity afservicesneeded.®
Insteaditisthe degrecof
impalrment ortheseverity of
illness that will determine the
need for hospitalization. Sotoo the
length of hospital stay fsnot related
todiagnosis,buttothe degree of
impairment and amount of time
required to reduce the impairment.

care,of when they falte rerpond
afterrepeated attempts teuse deas
intensneleselsofcare.

Because they serve asenvusly
disabled population, fnpatient
scttings tacklea wide varietyof
problems. Within the inpatient
sector, arange ofhealth care
settings have developed, each
fillinga unigue role. Itisthe
differences among these seltings
Gneluding whether thereis
expectation for a patient’s
improvement, different Jevels of
severity ofillness, different
environments and typesof
treatment modalities) that willbe
focused on throughout the
remainder of this paper.

The Inpatient Psychiatric
Delivery System

The differenecs among kinds of
p ¢ psychiatriehospitalsis

much greater than that seenin
mostof the general mediealand
surgical system. This degree of
vanance ean be attributed
pnmanlytothe very diverse needs
ofthementallyill. Speciahity
psychiatrichospitals serve a
unique ehientele and play a role
which eannotbe simply
transferred to outpatient elinies or
general hospital settings.$

Theinpatient psyehiatrie
delivery system cover~ awide
spectrum of publieand private
{ INH

mental health eare. But for those
peoplewhoseliness is serously
debilitating and often life-
threatening, the availabibity of
specislty hospitalization s
mandatory.

Inpatient hospitalization may
occur ina variety of treatment
settings, frons ceneral hospital
beds to specially psychiatrie
hospitals. The role of each of these
inpatient settings will bedetailed

2 & Uslng Peychlatric Benefits Wicely

Specialty hospital inpatient

treatmentis usedonly when
specificentenas are met. For
example, hospitalization wonldbe
recor,aended whenpeop'oareso
sensously disturbed that they
threaten toharm themselves, whes
their emotia~~1 problems prevent
them from carrying out basse dasly
requirements such us performing
aztharyborearmangout duliesat
home, when they cannot be treated
atalower jevel of
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NAPPH Specialty Hospitals

the United States there are
#).proximately 250 prychiatrie
specialty hospitals which have met
therigorous definition and eriteria
of the National Association of
Private Psychiatrie Hospitals
(NAPPH) asta what constitutes a
psychiatric specialty hospital.

Tobeeligible for nembership,
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theterpecialtyhospitals must have
fully trained paychiatnstsin
charpe of patient care. The faality
must provide active *reatment to all
patients—thatis, treatment that

canbe expected toresultin .
improvementina patient’s
condition. All active member
NAPPH hospitals are accredited by
the Joint Commission on

Accreditation of Hospitals (WCAN),
the arbiter of hospital quality. In
addition to requiring JCAH

fication, NAPPI{ memt
hospitalsarealsosurveyed by
NAPPH clinicalstaffbefore their
application is considered. NAPPH
istheonly hospitat associstion that
surveys ita membershipprior to
granting full membership.

NAPPH hospitals,
representing the overwhelming
melority of ehpble private
psychistrichospitalsinthe
country, are glsodistinguished by
meeting special requirements of
the Federal government on
staffing, treatment planning,
treatment Leam concepts, and i.ther
requirements.

Other Iupaticnt Settings

In additior: to specialty psychiatrie
hospitals, there are over 2,500
generathospital psychiatric units.
This numberincludes nearly 500
organized units wath psychiatric
stafl. There are over 1,500
unorganized units for "vings?
often staffedby general hospita)
personnel.

Another 4,500 Ceneral hospitals
provide mentathealth care without
anydesignated psychistricbeds,
accepting patients into“scatter
bed " stafled by generatheslth
care practitioners and nurscs.

Therearc also 218 state and
county facihities in the public
sector.
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Hlustration 3: Direct Costs
of Mental Health Care

$722 million, NAPPH spetialty hospitals
$3 5 halhon, state mental hospitals

. $3 6 billon, general hospital peychiatne services

73191 hillion total! ) U

Specialty psychiatns hospitalsuse only 3.7 percent of total mental
health resources, Because patients arecarcfullyscrcened, only
those trulyneeding this intensity ofservices are treated, Specialty
pssehiatrichosptials provide a full range of highlyspeclalized,
medically supervised, psychlatric programs,

Trends and Concerns

One ofthe most significant
changes inthe delivery of
psychiatricinpatient carchas been
an expansion of the role played by
shott-term peneral hospitals in the
treatment of milder formsof
psychiatriciliness. Thishasbeen
prompted by alessening ofstigma
and mor¢ awareness of the value of
carlytreztment.$

Thenumber of psychiatric
unitsingenerathospitals hasbeen
increasing dramatically. There
was, for example, 8 26 percent

in scparate psychistrie
units between Apriland October
1986, continuation of s trend
begunin1983,

However, asindicatedina
var lyofstudies, short.term
general hospitals may notbe

JHustration 4: Growth in Psychiatric Units
in General Hospitals, 1985.1986

Number
of
New Beds Total new beds increased
from 1891 102,430
2,000
Unorgamzed
units

October 1955 Apnl 1966

La00 /
e

Organized
units

October 1986

Thenumbcr of psychiatrie units in general hospitals has beenincreass
ing drawatically. Therewas, for example, a 26 pereent increase in
separate psychlatric units between April and October 1986,a continu

ationofatrend begun in 1963,

ACuldete Differenccain Poychiatrle HoapltslizstionSattlngs a 3

Y6




equipped, staffed or constructed to provade
needed care and treatment for patients with
d to severe psychiatric disorders 512
Anotherfocal point of general hospital
hzation is the hospitahzation of patients with
a dary diagnosis of psychiatriciliress.
This would include those patients with a
primarydiganosis of a physicalillnessand a
secondary diagnosis of amentalillness who
areadmittedt dicalor v' 1 betds.
Typically these patients receive treatment for
psychiatric disorders from physicians who ar:
not psychiatrists and other health pessonnelnot
trained in psychiatric care.
How-—and whom—cach settingserves will
be examined mere closely in the next section.

NAPPH Psychiatric
Specialty Hospitals:
Why We Are Unique

A! 4. P 'ysy (N3 2 h r'l 1 0 1
inthe development of psychiatric programs for
the evaluatior, and treatinent of serious
psychiatricdisorders. Specialty psychiatnc
hospitals devote staffing and adnumistrative

T int medical specialty and
provide exclusively psychiatric treatment.

We treatserious illness.

Patients admitted to NAPPH specialty
hospitals are most often referredby
psychiatrists and other mental health
professionals. Most patients referred to
NAPPH hospitals have had a history of
psychiatric iliness with extensive outpatient
therapy and/or previous hospitalization, For
example, speciaity psychiatric hospital patients
hadanaverage of 24 8 days of carein other
ttingsbefore being admitted to an NAPPH
hospital pared with patients seenin
unorganized units of general hospitals who had
anaverage of only 7.6 days of prior care. All
patients referred to NAPPH hospitals must be
evaluated by psychiatrists to determine the
level of services needed. More thanhalf¢ "a"
referrals to private psychiatric hospitals are
madeby psychiatrists who have determined
thatless intensive levels of care are
inappropriate.
4 8 UsingPsychiatric Benefits Wisely
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Instration 5: Inpatient Referral Sowmce

for NAPPU Specialty Hospitals

7% Other
mental
health
professionals

Themajority of patients seen in private
psychiatric hospitals have been referred by
psychiatristswho have evaluated the need for
anintensivelevel of service.

“NAPPH hospitals are distinguished by
meeting special requirements of the

Federal government on staffing,

treatment planning, tr. ~tment team
concepts, and other requirements.”

IHustration 6: Distribution of Medicare Case

Mix by Hospital Type

NAPPRH Organized Unorganized
specialty untin unitandscatter
hospatal genersl bedein
hospital generalhospital
Psychoses 60.6% 39.8% 27.9%
Depressive 11 8% 14.1% 13.3%
iliness
Substance 12.1% 15.2% 185%
and alcohol
abuse

Private psychiatrie hospitals serve serverelyll

patients. More than 60%of private psychiatric hospital
Medicare paticnts, forexample, are suffering frem

psychotie illuess,
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Rlustration 7: Principal Discharge Diagnosis
in NAPPH Specially Hospitals

Other 778%

Substance
Rolated 745%

Alcohol Related
9.38%

 Aflective
Disorders
“{non psychotic)
2};44%

iPS) chotie
Disorders
46 08%

O
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Private psychiatrie hospitals serve severely ill patients. Ofall
patients scen by NAPPH hospitals, nearlyhalf (46.08%) were

Ireated for psychotie disorders.

Psy.hiatne specialty hospatals
have alonger length of stay than
the general hospital psychiatne
services because of the lllness of
the patient population served 6

The patients seen in NAPPH
psychiatric hospitals most often
have complex illnessesinvolving
1aultiple problems, which require
the expertise of a full range of
mental health specialists. For
example, several studies found that
one third of the adolescents
bospitalized for acute psychiatne
disturb inprivatep ic
hospitals showed an early history
anda progressive mamfestation of
learming disabiity. Learming
disabilities were evadent despate,
mmany cases, the educatisnal
and therapeutic supports these

youngstersreceived during the
carly school years. Inthese
studies, caseswere distnbuted
across avanety of diagnostic
calego.res 7

hiat

We are intensively staffed
to provide individualized
services.
Because of the complex nature of
patients’ problems, NAPPH
speaialty hospitals necd tobe very
1abor intensne, wath a higher staffe
to patient ratiothan any other
inpatient psychiatnc treatment
setting. As reported by the

Amencan Hospatal Asseciation,
psychiatric specralty hospatals
have the highest labor intensity
compared to all other medical,
surgical, or rehabilitative
treatment environments.

We have a range of
treatment programs.

Treatinent programs in NAPPH
psychiatne spearalty hospitals are
generally grouped intofive major
categones. genatne, adult,
adolescent, child, and substance
abuse. In addition, many hospitals
have speaialized programs to treat
speaific diagnostic eategories.

Treatment programs are
managed by specially qualified
psychiatric treatmentteams under
the supervision of a psychiatrist.
These teams are made up of
psychologsts, clinical social
workers, rehabilitation
wunselors, certified alecholism
counsddors (when appropnale)

pational and recr
t* .rapists, psychiatnie nurses,
certified teachers (when
appropnate), and tramned mental
health technicians,

Treatment modahtiesin
psy<hiatne speaialty hospitals
cncompass the biological/

Mlustration §: Labor Intensity
By Type of Hospital, 1982

NAPPH speaalty
hospital 15 1%

I Rehabilitat.on hospital 66 5%

General hospital 57,4%

Psychiatric specialty hospitals have the highest labor intensily
compared lo all otherinedical, surgical, or rchabilitative

{reament environments.

AGuidetoDiffetencesinPsychaatric Hospitalization Settings 5 &
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Hlustration 9: Therapies and Senvices offered  Therapies and Services offered . 9 e 4
Hospital by 95% of the membership by 60% of the membership ° .
95% e
Proc.cdurcs € Indwidusl 4 Dewoxification +
provided by ¢ Family % Substarce sbuse "
NAPPH 3 Crovp rebabalitation a
S salty *  QOccupational + Marial 60% . x
peciaity 6 Recreational ; Art '
N ©  School Vocationa
Hospitals A Socal services .rehabibtation

psychologrcal’social approach and
often iavolve the family, employer,
and ssgmficant others within the
patient’s support «ystem. In other
words, treatment Jooks at how
physical healthimpactson
emotional well be.ng, andhow
both of these are impacted by how
the patient inferacts wath others at
work, at home, at school, or in
society. An initial evaluation of
each patientis follow ed by the
development of a patient-speaific
plan ofcare, with definitive goals
tobe reached. Dret~rge planamg
is alsodeveloped as anategral
component in the indi /idual’s
treatmen. plan.

AINNAPPH specia’ty
programs provide intensive
treatment with 24-hour-a day
chinical supervision by trained
psychiatric professionals. Patients
areinvolved for a minimum of
between five and seven hours per
dayinactive treatment,including
time spentin treatment-directed
therapeuticrecreation and sotial
activities(and, for adolescents,
timen school programs that are
anintegral part of the treatment
program). From this, themtensity
of thetreatmentpatientsrecenen
private psychiatrichospitals
becomes apparent.

We offer a continum of care.

Additionally, NAPPH psychiatne
epeaialty hospitals offer a
continuum of services, which

6 3 Using Psychiatric Renefits Wieely

allows patients to move 1nto less intensive leveis of care as their
treatment progeesses, This presents a different type of treatmeat from
the general hospital and pubhc facilities, which may not offer more
than onelevelof care.

In NAPPH psychiatnichospitals, the goal of treatment s to
stabilize patients and retu.n them to regular routines with ashttle
disruption to their Iives as possible. This philosophy is reflected in the
high number of patients (77 pereent } who are discharged totheir
humes. anconirast, many general hospital unsts must refer patients
for more intensicare in prate or pubhichospitals, or readmit them
more frequently,

Ye have special therapeutie facilities.

With adisease that shatters self esteem and that still sigmatizes
individuals, providing a hopeful and uphifting treatment setingas
not a luxury. The environment 1s an impurtant treatment element. In
planning a facihity, detals ke intenor colors or ar'work must be
chosen for theirsmpact on a troubled mind. Faciliies must bebmlt
and furniture chosen with an eye for the safety of a potentially self-
destructive or hyperacin e patient. Additional safety feat such us
safety glass and apphances must be considered for patient protection.

Hlustration 10: Pereent of Patients Discharged to Home

8% ) st
m:dlecf.:lﬂgam 77% Discharged

advice to home
15% other

referrals

including

nursing homes,

veterans

admanstration,

ete.

Most patients in private psychiatric hospitals are able to
return home following hospitalization. In addition, pricale
psycliatric hospituls provide a continuum of care for those ho
doneed otherlecels of services
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Hlustration 11: Readmission Rates for Cliwonic Alcoholics

Cteard.

*55% Readmit

70% Non-readmit

42% Non-readmit

NAPPH Specialty Hospitals General Hospitals

This readmission rate for chronic alcoholics reflects rcadmussions for
chronic alcoholism and other underlying psychiatric disorders. The
data empnasizes the general clinical consensus that detoxafication
without therapyis not cost-effective.

Speaial accommodations that are
age- or program specific,suchas
classrooms or occupational therapy
facilities, must be made. Spacious
and comfortable rooms that will
enccurage patients to take prde
and responsibibity for their daily
living are a necessity.

Overall, the environmentn
NAPPH psychiatric specialty
hospitals closely repheates the
home, community, and work
environments. Anindividual
treatment planisdevelopedby a
team of psychiatric speciahststo
address the patient’s individual
needs. All the interventions used
(including therapeatic recreation,
socialactivities, and the
therapeutic environment) are
tailored to resolve the patient’s
individual problem and retur~ that
person to the community athis or
her highest level of functioning.

We are economically
efficient.
NAPPH psychiatricspecialty
hospital room andboard rates are
less expensive per patient day than
psychiatricunitsof general
hospitals, Thisisbecause

ERIC
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psychiatnie speaizity hospatals do
not require expensive, high-
technolegy anaillary equipment,
space, or medical/surgical
personnel. They also cost less per
squarefoot perbed and maintain
lower administrative costs8

We participate in a national
referral network.
Withinthe psychiatnc speaialty
hospital sector, there ate a number
of NAPPH hospitals that have
developed into national referral
centers. Typically, these hospitals
provide treatment for patients who
havehad four tofive previous
hospitalization failures and
require extremely intensive
treatmentofien associated vath
fairly long lengthsof stay. These
long-term care specialty hos: tals
provide treatment topatientswho
are diagnosed as still havingthe
potential for significant
improvement. This type of hospatal
is Jabor intensive due tothe
difficulty of the disorders ofthe
patient population

]
E
1

AGuldeto DS

“Overall, the environ-
ment in NAPPH
psychiatric specialty
hospitals closely
replicates the home,
community and work
environments.”

“Seventy-seven percent
of the patients in private
psychiatric hospitals are
discharged to home.”

inPsychistricllospitalizationSettings & 7
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Yow General and State Hospitals it in the System

Psychiatric Units of
Generzl Hospitals
While freestanding psychiatn

N :

pitals are uniquely Hod
to psychiatric services, general
hospitals and state facilities also
play arolein the inpatient delnery
system.This section explains the
ways such facilities are organized
and mosttypically used.

Organized Units
An*orgamized umt” withina
generathospitalisdefined asan
area of a hospital that s setaside
for patients with psychiatne

diag g dumts have
anidentifiable staffstructurethat
provides speaific, spearalized
programs for the mentally,ll.

Most organized units are
designed to provide short-term
inpatient treatment for those
patients with diagnoses indicating
amoderate seentyofillness, and
often with a concurrent physical
disorder. In addition, the
organized psychiatricunitoften
providestriage and diagnostic
services,

Gencral hospital psychiatric
units generally provide a singular
levelof careand often do not effer
the wide array of specialized
senices needed for more severe
cases. Unlike NAPPH specialty
hospitals, many general hospital
units maynot have such services
asoceupational and rehabilitative
therapy, staffed school programs
for children and adolescents, and
clinical social work support
services. Similarly, spacemay not
be available in a gencral hospital
program toprovide separate
treatmentareas foradol ¢
and adults.

8 3 UsingPsychiatric Benefits Wisely
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IMustration 12: The Inpatient Delivery System

Private General Hospitals Public
3";)c!‘:mtric Hospitals
Organized Unorganized Scatter
units units beds State,
County
Unorganized Units

An*unorganized unit” alsohas a separate area designated withina
medical'surgical hospital, However, unorgamized unitshav e never been
sunveyed for staffing by hicesing personnel or Federalsurveyors
specifically for psy chiatnic care. There are not necessanly professional
psy. hatne staff designated and assigned to this type of unit.

Often the unorg:

d unit has no acc

dat. for aprotective

patient environment, rarely offenng lecked umits or seclusion rooms for

the patient requiring such restrictions

Mustration 13: Length of Stay and Average Days
of Prior Care in Various Treatment Facilities

500 Public
400 NAPPH
Speaalty
200 hesptal
200
100
00

Length of Stay

Organized unit in general hospatal
Unorganized umt in gencral bosputal
Scatter beds in general hospital

NAPPH
Pubhic Spedalty
hospital

General
hospital

Care
O3 Public faahties
© NAPPH Specalty hospital

Thelength of stay in generalhospitals indicate the triage, stabilization
and referral oricntation of these hosputals. Specialty psychiatric hospitals
usuallyseea more disturbed patient population that has had manymore
days of prior psychiatriccare than thoseseen in general hospitals.
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Ilustration 14: Percent of Psychiatric Staff in
Various Hospitalization Scttings

loo " . N A
Psychiatrist o
A P
R —
{:_, Other 6o . §9'6%>
OFr 1 69%
20k LY
o 13.9%:
General General NAPPH
hounital hospital e
Vl-r i d rv ized k’ i ‘)
umst unit i
and seatter
bed

Psychiwatrists areancharge of medical treatment in private psy chiatric
hospitals. In contrast, over 36% of the patients with primary psychiatric

di in gencral hospital scatter beds have no divect treatment bya
psychiatrist.
According Lo the National General Hospital

Institute of Mental Health, general Scatter Beds
hospital psychiatricunits primarily
treat patients with affective
disorders, acute episodes of
schizophrensa, and non-psychotie
diagnoses. The averape length of
stay, 0t 1210 13 days, demonstrates
the tnage and referral orientation
of these units. These numbers are the bed designation, sobed use
further diminished when changes hterally from day today.
reviewing the unorranized unit Prefessional staffing and medical
length of stay at 7da, s, w.th services are delivered most often
primary admission diagnosis by general medical specialists,
being aleohol and substance with no psychiatric treatment team
induced organic mental syndrome. ortrained mentalillness special-
The National Center for Health istinvolvement.

Services Research and Health Care Only 13 9 percent of the
Technology Assessment (NCHSR) psychiatnc patients admitted into
found that the unorganized units the scatter bed setting are under the
discharge significantly more of professional care of a psychiatnst.
their psychiatric patients to other Pifty-two per-entof patient
settings, primanly the psychiatne care delivered in scatterbedsis by
specialty hospital, when severely ageneral practitios... orinternist.
psychotic dingnoses are present.S Thereisprofessional

*Scatterbeds” are general hospital
beds used for a variety of medical
ilinesses, including psy ciiiatne
discase, and are located throughout
the hospital In fact,itis the
patient's disease that determines

concensus that treatment of a
mentalillness withina scatter bed
environrrent is less than
definitive, treating the symptoms
rather than the etiology of the
psychiatne disorder.? Involuntary
admissions are almost never
acceptedn this type of treatment
environment. Patients are usually
mildly psychiatrically impaired.
Scatterbedshave no
speciahized treatment program-
ming Infact,an NCHSR study
foundthatnone of the patientawith
a principal psychiatric diagnosis
in generathospital scatter beds
reccived any psychotherapy dunng
their hospital stay.3 Most patients
are stabilized through drug therapy
and then discharged or transferred
toa moreintensive inpatient
treatment envaronment. In
wuntrast, levs than 10 percent of
patientsin NAPPH psychiatne
hospitals are referred to other
medical and psychiatnc services,
sincludingnursinghomes. Length
of stay sn scatter beds is typically
nolonger than six days, time for
evaluation and stabilication of the
patient. Nearly 28 percent of
Medicare psychiatne disch
are from scatter beds, which donot
have the same level of psychiatne
speciahization foundin N«.PPH
specialty hospitals.

Ilustration 15: Percent
Specialties in Various
Hospitalization Scttings

Cerersl  Cenenl  NAPTH
Papial  heepul  Spcuty
orpanacd  wewps  hapial
ot el vt

4nd sentier

Psychiatnst 69 14 90
General

practicioner 6 3 3
Internist 16 30 4
Other 9 34 8

Data rounded to nearest pere-ot.

AGuide to DifferencesinPeychiatric HospitalitationSettings » 9
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Public Psychiatric
Facilities

State and county government
treatment facihties tyically care
for the ¢hropically mentallyill,
although some states dopresent
treatmentalternativesfiracut.ly
illpatients.

The National Association of
Private Psychiatric Hospitals
defines thetreatmrent goals for
¢hronically snd azuiely il
patients asfollows

o  Thepoalof treatment fora
chronically mentallyll
personistoprevent further
deterioration.

9 Thegoaloftreatment foran
acutely:ll personisto return
theindividual toopimum
funchioning and re-entry into
theiractaatiesof danly lining
tothe rasimum eatent
possible,

Since themajonty of resources of
public facilites are focusedon
treating the chroni¢ psychiatne
patient, the goals and treatment
focus are quite different than the
NAPPH speaalty hospital,

The public psychiatric facality
program provides for the activities
of daily ivingin a safe
ressdential setting andin some
cases for acutecare. In addition,
the public psychiatne faality
provides for chroni¢ patients with
recurring episodes of their)llness,
who have minimal potential for
improvement. These facshites also
carefor thementally retarded and
the severelybrain damaged
population.

Theaverage length of stay
nationally in the publi¢ psychiatne
facilities, including general,
county and state hospitals.isn
excess of 45days, with 42 percent of

10w UsingPsyeldatricBenefits Wisely
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Nustration 16: Number of Beds Operated by
New York State in Relation to Length of Stay

Acute care, 50 days orless 2,000beds

"oderate LOS, 6 months. 2,000beds

"3 Average 103, 9years: [I 16,000 beds

0.

10090

20,000

Manystates makea poliey

ntto dialcare,

as underscored by New York state’s designation of 16,000
beds for custodial care. However, most statescannat
affford tomakethislevel of commitment. Theaverage
length of stay (LOS) in public hospitals nationallyis 45
duys with 42% of discharged paticnts readmitted within 90

days.

discharged patients readmitted
within 90 days. In some states, hke
New York, stays are even longer.
The or erall readmussion rate for
public psychiatni¢ facihties
exceeds 51 percent. Accordingto
the NationalInstitute of Mental
Health, inveluntary non ¢nminal
admistions are at 51,1 percentin
puthic facihtses, withinvoluntary
¢niminal admissions above 7
percent. In the state of New York.
involuntary admissions exceed 60
percent.

Typically public psychiatne
faolities provide a munture of long-
term supervisory care (requinnga
lesser level of medical attention
and generallyrendered ona
maintenance or custodiallevel
basis)and acute care.

Dzta released 1n 1986 by the
National Institute of Mental
Health shows that the number of
pubhe psychiatric facihity beds
decreased from 279,274 indanuary
1974 10128,626in January, 1984,
This representsa 53 9 percent
decrease within that time period.
These reductions result from
decreased federal, state, and

county fundsin addition tothe

phasis toward deinst \|
zation and have contnbuted
largely to the growing “street
people™populations Unfortunately,
studses have shown that altermstive
treatment settings aze not
availablein sufficient quantity or
umformly distnbuted to carefor
the chronically mentally)l.io
Quterys from organizations such
as the National Association of
Private Psychiatric Iospitals, the
National Alliance for the Mentally
111,the American Mental Health
Fund, the National Mental Health
Association, andthe American
Psychiatnic Association clearly
call for an adequate provasion of
the full spectrum of mentalhealth
services1n order 1o care for the
mentally il of this country.
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Thoughts for
Benefit

Managers: Using
Inpatient Benefits
Wisely

Inpatienthospitahizationisa
necessity for psy chiatric patients
whoseillnessis both severeand
debilitating Finding the most
appropriate setting for any single
patient requires an urderstanding
of the diversity of inpatient options.

O Recognize that there
are differences in
inpatient settings
for psychiatric
treatment.

There are private specialty
hospitals that offer a full array of
programming for all age groups.
There are 2eneral hospitalunits
organized to provide psychiatric
care. There are also"seatter beds”
ingeneral hospitals—where a
psychiatrie patient may be housed
with a patient wath another
diagnosis and wherenoactive
psychiatric prog ram is provided

Eachof these settings is staffed,
equipped, and constructed to serve
patients wathvaryinglevels of
severity,

0 Check the individual
patient’s severity of
psychiatricillness
and level of impair-
ment.

Diagnosis s not an indicator of
which seting will best sen e the
patient. For example, two patients
with the very same diagnosis
almost certainly wilthave
different hastones, support
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systems, and vanng degrees of
mamfestation of the symptoms of
theinlines. in tharbehavior Oae
properly diagnosed schic phrenic
patient may hiave an encapsulated
psychosis that does not cause the
patient to act on the psychotic
thinking caused by the disease,
Another schizophrenic patient may
act out halluaanations and,
therefore, be more severely i)
Similarly, patients with
depression may all have problems
with eating, sleeping, sexuahty, or
work performance. However,one
patient may be able to work through
aensisbeeduse o exeelient support
systems. Another may have
similar symptoms, but may be so
impaired that weight Yossis out of
control, or thoughts of smiaxde
become snercasingly concrete In
alleases, itis thedegreeto which
symptoms ore dehiltating that
sways deasions about the
appropnate setting for treatment.

O Match the patient
with the appropriate
setting.

For example, an adolescent may
best be sen ed by aspecyalty
hospital that can provide treatment
w.thpeers by cimeians tramedan
adolescentissues, that caninclude
the famly in treatment, and that
canntegrate schoel as a part of
treatment.

0 Recognize that treat-
ment needs may
char.ge over time.

Forjust that reason, NAPPH
psyshiatrichuspitalshav e deve-
Tuped acontinuum ofcare fiom out
patientte; trtialherpitalization to
speaaahzed Jonger-term services,
Theavalabilty of a full con-

Lnuum allows patient® torevive
theappropnatelevel of eare to
match the seventy of tharallness
with as hittle disruption te thar
hves as possible

NAPPII Philosophy
The primary mission of NAPPH
psychiatne speaialty hospitalsis to
provide quahity treatment for the
moderately toseverely
psychiatiically mentally sliby
cffening a comprehensive range of
services to treat all Yevelsof
impairment. The length of stay
and cost of service are reflections
of the patient’s seventy ofillness
andresulting fevel of impairment.
Fach scetor of inpatient
psychiatnic care provides ales elof
treatmicnt that combines physical
resourcees, overall hospatal
mi.<10n, and a service
commitment to the disease of
mentabllness,

The costs to soarety for not
providing early and app.ropnate
prychiatne eare willinewitably
lead toa much higher cost to sotrety
through the subsidization of the
Justice system, the welfare system,
and the penal system The "street
populations™ and overflowing
penal sy stem are testamentstothe
public policy  ‘earsion to
mainstream G snstitutionalized
individuals wih ut adequate
commumty support of aflereare
scrvices The availabality anduse
of drugs by adults, adolescents,
and children aswellasthe
alarnungteenage suiide rate are
reflective of the complexities of
today’s changing society.

Allofthese jssues dircetly
affectindividunls, communities,
wrpvrations, and public pohicy
makersbothn terms ofsost and
respensiilitres. Since studves
have clearly indicated the

AGuidetoDifferencesinPeychisiric Hospitalization Setlings 8 13
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«wnym»cb\mﬁls of treatang troubled enaployees, it makes good financial
sense Lo provde comgrchensin. mental health bnefits 13 141 socety’s
responsibility 10 sce that those who need psychiatne care receivert at the
level requited and to ensure that those individuals areintegrated back into
asociety that allows them to achieve maximum productiity.
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STATEMENT OF ALAN SPIELMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, GOV-
ERNMENT PROGRAMS LEGISLATION, BLUE CROSS AND BLUE
SHIELD ASSOCIATION, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. SpietmaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Once again, we are
pleased to be here to testify on a subject of expanding Medicare
benefits, and again we hope that our experience as Medicare inter-
mediaries and carriers, and our private market experience will be
of help to you.

In the private market, virtually all of our 70 million nonelderly
subscribers and their dependents have some form of mental health
coverage. The extent of this coverage varies in part to reflect the
different preferences of our accounts.

My written statement provides details on what these coverages
are.

Because of the potentially large cost involved, effective benefit
design and management is critical to containing mental health cov-
erage cost. Appropriate patient cost sharing, mechanisms to
manage the utilization of services, and in some cases, patient incen-
tives to use the most cost effective providers are all important to
the management of mental health benefits.

Utilization of mental health benefits has been of particular con-
cern to third-party payers. As a result, specific limits on the dollar
value of benefits payable or on the number of visits that will be
covered, as well as patient coinsurance higher than that applied to
other services are often used to help contain benefit costs to rea-
sonable levels.

The Medicare supplemental coverage offered by Blue Cross and
Blue Shield -lans generally does not provide mental health bene-
fits beyond those covered by Medicare, although coverage of the in-
patiert hospital deductible is common.

Wou heard from other witnesses the details concerning Medi-
care's current benefits, ang, of course, the proposals that are on the
table are quite familiar to you so I will not go into detail on those.

In this area, we believe that if the Congress decides additional
Medicare spending is appropriate, it is reasonable to consider some
expansion of the mental health benefit. Currently, relatively few
beneficiaries use these services, but existing limits can create
access problems and financial burdens in individual cases. Expand-
ing inpatient and outpatient mental health benefits in the context
of catastrophic coverage would, therefore, be appropriate.

As you consider proposals in this area, we would like to suggest
four principles of design and administration. The first is simplicity;
the second is balancing beneficiary cost sharing with financial
access; the third is adequate utilization management; and the
fourth is the equitable financing of the benefit.

The simpler the benefit, the easier it is for beneficiaries and pro-
viders to understand and for Medicare intermediaries and carriers
to implement. Either increasing the current dollar cap on outpa-
tient coverage or setting a cap on the number of visits would be
simplest. In this area we believe a cap on visits is the best
approach.

Regarding beneficiary cost sharing, a reasonable level is desira-
ble to deter unnecessary care while providing sufficient financial

140
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access. It would be reasonable, albeit costly, to lower the coinsur-
ance from the current 50 percent. We would, however, recommend
against eliminating entirely any distinction between the coinsur-
ance on mental health benefits and that applicable to other Part B
services.

While the coinsurance level is one way to encourage appropriate
utilization, another approach is through the review of the medical
necessity and appropriateness of mertal health services. Medicare
coggra(:tor activities in this area should be continued and encour-
aged.

Finally, in regard to financing, a key issue is whether current
beneficiaries will be required to finance fully the benefit expansion
or whether it will simply be incorporated in the current financing
mechanisms for Part A or Part B. If the benefit is to be fully fi-
nanced by current beneficiaries, and the cost of the benefit expan-
sion is subsiantiai, we believe it should be accomplished through
an income-related approach, such as the beneficiary premium sur-
charge included in the pending catastrophic coverage bill.

In summary, expanding Medicare’s outpatient mental health
benefit is an appropriate option for Congress to consider if ade-
quate financing sources are available and appropriate design and
administrative features are included. We believe that increasing
the cap and stating it in terms of visits, while maintaining the cur-
rent coinsurance, probably would be the best approach. Such an ex-
pansion is the simplest to understand and administer; it permits
the use of carriers’ existing utilization review mechanisms; and em-
phasizes protection for higher cost patients.

We also support consideration of replacing the inpatient psychi-
atric lifetime day limit with an appropriate annual limit in order
to provide better protection from catastrophic expenses.

In conclusion, we would be pleased to provide any further infor-
mation on our Medicare experience or experience in the private
health insurance market in this area. Thank you.

[The prepared written statement of Mr. Spielman follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the subcommittee, I am Alan P. Spielman, Executive
Director of Government Programs Legislation for the Blue‘Cross and Blue Shield
Association. We appreciate this opportunity to testify on expanding mental health
benefits under Medicare. As fiscal intermediaries and carriers, the Asscriation and
Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans have administered Medicare mental health benefits
since the beginning of the program. In addition, the Blue Cross and Blue Shield
organization has experience in the design and management of mental health benefits in

the private health insurance market.

We believe a summary of our experience with mental health benefits under both
Medicare and private insurance may be helpful to the subcommittee. We would like to
provide details on Plans' mental health coverage and suggest principles of benefit

design and administration for Medicare.

In the private market, virtually all of our 70 million non-elderly subscribers and their
dependents have mental health v, ciage. The extent of this coverage varies in part to
reflect the different preferences of our accounts. For inpatient mental health care,
Plans generally provide coverage for a specified number of days with only limited cost
sharing. On outpatient mental health care, about 80% of Plans generally require
patient coinsurance of 50 percent, subject to account preferences and state laws, with
the balance of Plans requiring 20% coinsurance. Mental health benefits either are
included in the basic coverage package, in major medical covzrage, or in a separate

program, depending on state requirements and account requests.

Benefits under the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Federal Employee Program (FEP) include

inpatient hospital care for treatment of mental illness and outpatient mental health
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care up to an annual maximum. FEP high option covers up to 50 outpatient visits per
year with 30% coinsuance and a $200 overall deductible on medical services. High
option catastrophic psychiatric coverage pays for all medically necessary inpatient
mental health services once out—-of-pocket liability exceeds $4,000, up to a $75,000 . )
lifetime payment. Standard option covers up to 25 outpatient visits with 25%
coinsurance and a $250 overall medical deductible. Standard option catastrophic
coverage pays for all necessa. y inpatient mental health services after out—of-pocket

expenses of $8,000, subject t¢: a $50,000 lifetime reimbursement.

The Medicare supplemental coverage offered by Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans
generally does not provide mental health benefits beyond those covered by Medicare.
However, most Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan Medigap preducts cover Medicare

hospital deductibles, including those incurred for psychiatric hospitalizations.

Most Plans monitor high-cost cases and unusual provider practice patterns. Several
Plans are using innovative arrangements such as preferred provider arrangements and
“'participation” status for providers meeting specified qualifications, such as

maintaining an auditable utilization review program.

Current Medicare Mental Health Coverage and Cost

Under Part A, Medicare covers inpatient psychiatric services to the same extent as
other inpatient hospital services, except that psychiatric care is subject to a 190-day
lifetime limit. About 100,000 beneficiaries used inpatient psychiatric services in 1985 at
a cost of $550 million, according to the Congressional Budget Office (CBO). Data from
HCFA show that about 10,000 beneficiaries have exhausted their 190-day Part A

psychiatric hospital limit, a number that increases by about 1,000 annually. .
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Under Part B, Medicare pays 50% of allowed charges for outpatient mental health care,
up to an annual payment limit of $250. Charges for initial psychiatric diagnostic
services are not subject to this limit. Roughly 465,000 beneficiaries received covered
outpatient mental health care in 1985 at a cost of $47 nillion, according to CBO. In

1985 about 46,000 beneficiaries under Part B exhausted their mental health coverage.

While relatively few beneficiaries exhaust Medicare mental health coverage, those who
do may face catastrophic expenses. For other beneficiaries, combined out-of-pocket
spending for mental health care and other services could be a financial burden. In the
context of Medicare catastrophic coverage, we believe it is appropriate to consider

what mental health benefit changes may be desirable.

Proposals to Expand Mental Health Coverage

Three bills to expand mental health coverage are receiving considerable congressional
attention. S. 1209, introduced by Serator Durenberger, would increase the Part B cap
on outpatient mental health services from $250 to $1,215 for certain "high use” services
and eliminate the cap for other mental health services. The benefictary coinsurance
percentage would vary from 20% to 50% depending on the type of service and the visit
number. In addition, the bill would impose an annual limit of 30 visits for high use

services.

The Medicare Menta] Iliness Non-Discrimation Act, S. 718, introduced by Senator
Matsunaga and as H.R. 1067 by Representative Downey, would remove the current

limits on both inpatient psychiatric days and outpatient reimbursement.

H.R. 2470, the Medicare catastrophic coverage bill as reported by the House Ways and

Means Committee, would increase the Part B mental health payment cap to $1,000 per
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year. The House Energy and Commerce Health Subcommittee version of H.R. 2470
would replace the dollar cap with a 25-visit limit and exclude "medical management"
services from the limit. Both versions of H.R. 2476 would count a maximum of $250 in

beneficiary outpatient coinsurance toward the Part B catastrophic stop loss.

Blue C i Blue Shield Positi
If Congress decides additional Medicare spending is appropriate, it is reasonable to
consider some expansion of mental health benefits. Currently, relatively few
beneficiaries use these services, but existing limits can create access problems and
financial burdens in individual cases. Thus, it may be appropriate to consider expanding

inpatient and outpatient mental health benefits in the context of catastrophic coverage.

While Medicare spending for mental health benefits is relatively low today, it is
important to consider the potential for rapid cost increases when reviewing proposals to
expand Medicare benefits in this area. CBO estimates that liminating the inpatient
psychiatric lifetime limit would cost $2.2 billion over the next five years, while
eliminating the Part B cap (but retaining 50% coinsurance) could cost $1.7 billion over

the same period.

Because of the potentially large costs involved, effective benefit design and
management is critical to containing the costs of mental health coverage. Appropriate
patient cost sharing, mechanisms to manage the utilization of services including
limitations on the scope of benefits provided, and in some cases, pat'ent incentives to
use the most cost-effective providers are all important to the managemeant of mental
health benefits. The utilization of mental health benefits is of particular concern to

third party payers. The state-of-the-art for utilization review of mental health

pert
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benefits generally lags behind that for treatment of physical illness and injury.
Moreover, patients themselves may exercise a much greater influence over the
frequency of outpatient mental health treatments than for other services. As aresult,
specific limits on the dollar value of benefits payable or on the number of visits that
will be covered, as well as patient coinsurance higher than that applied to other

services, are often used to help contain benefit costs to reasonable levels.

Benefit Desi { Admini .
As the subcommittee considers proposals to expand mental health benefits under
Medicare, we would suggest four principles for benefit design and administration.
These are:

1) Simplicity of design,

2)  An appropriate balance between beneficiary cost sharing and financial

protection,
3)  Adequate utilization control, and

4)  Equitable financing.

Simplici
The simpler the benefit, the easier for beneficiaries and providers to v. 'erstand and for
Medicare intermediaries and carriers to administer. Either increasing the current
dollar cap on outpatient coverage, as in the Ways and Means version of H.R. 2470, or
setting a cap on the number of visits, as in the Energy and Commerce Health
Subcommuttee version of that bill, would be simplest. Conversely, proposals to impose
differential cost sharing percentages depending on the type of service or the number of
visits could be confusing und difficult to administer. However, we do not believe an
administrative problem would be created by exempting "medical management" services,

such as periodic prescription drug monitoring, from the limit.

Fomd
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Beneficiary Cost Sharing

In regard to beneficiary expenses, a reasonable level of cost sharing is desirable to
deter unnecessary care while providing sufficient financial access. Similarly, the level
of a cap on Medicare reimbursement ideally should not create an incentive to

over-utilize care.

We would note that very few Medigap policies pay for outpatient mental health care
once the Medicare payment cap is exceeded, so an adequate cap is perhaps the most
important design feature. One issue relating to a benefit cap is whether it should be
based on a dollar amount (e.g. the Ways and Means version of H.R. 2470), the number of
visits (e.g. the Energy and Commerce Health Subcommittee version of H.R. 2470), or a
combination (5. 1209). Simply raising the dollar cap today would not keep pace with
future inflation, inus eroding the benefit's value. A solution would be to index the
dollar limit. Using a visit limit also avoids the value erosion problem and has the
advantage of providing all beneficiaries, regardlocs of whether they live in a high or low
cost area, with the same scope of benefits. However, if the visit limit is high, costs
could increase rapidly. We would point out that the dollar value of the number of visits
allowed under the Energy and Commerce version of H.R. 2470 would appear to be more
generous than if the $250 cap set in 1965 simply were adjusted for subsequent inflation.
A corhination of dollar and visit limits could be designed as a middle ground but at the

expense of simplicity. On balance, we believe a cap on _sits only is most appropriate.

xegarding the beneficiary's out~of-pocket expense, it would be reasonable, albeit
costly, to lower the coinsurance from the current 50 percent. We would, however,
recommend against eliminating entirely any distinction between the coinsurance on

mental health benefits and that for other Part B services.
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We also suggest that Congress consider altering Medicare's 190-day lifetime limit on
inpatient mental health care. This would protect those relatively few beneficiaries who
could incur catastrophic expenses for severe psychiatric illnesses. We recognize that
such a change could be costly but believe expenses could be restrained through stringent
utilization review. One apProach being discussed would replace the current lifetime
limit with an annual limit. This would help assure that expenses would not escalate
from episodes of long-term hespitalization while helping protect beneficiaries who need
multiple but relatively short hospitalizations over their lifetimes. Such an approach

would pose no administrative problems.

Utilization Review

While the coinsurance level is one way to encourage appropriate utilization, another
approach is the review of the medical necessity and appropriateness of mental health
care. ,These reviews, which are conducted by Medicare carriers and intermediaries,
include reviewing cases when the number of visits exceeds the norm for particular
diagnoses. Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans also conduct utilization review for their
privately insured subscribers. Some Plans perform case management for subscribers
using extensive mental health care. Plans generally also perform claims reviews to
identify and investigate unusual service patterns of particular providers. This latter

process is similar to postpayment reviews done by Medicare contractors.

Ei .
Finally, in regard to financing, a key issue is whether current beneficiaries will be
required to finance fully the benefit expansion or whether it will simply be incorporated
into the current financing mechanisms for Part A or Part B of the program. If the
benefit is to be fully financed by beneficiaries and the cost of the benefit is significant,

we believe that it should be accomplished through an income-related approach such as
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the beneficiary premium surcharge included in the pending catastrophic coverage bills.
The alternative, simply f.icreasing <he Part B premium to finance the new benefits,
could be financially burdensome to some beneficiaries in view of the expected premium

increase under current 1aw and the pending premium increases for other benefits.

Sumrmary
In summary, expanding Medicare's outpatient menta) health benefit is an appropriate
option for Congress to consider if adequate financing sources are available and

appropriate design and administrative features are included.

We believe a benefit expansion along the lines of that proposed in the Energy and
Commerce Health Subcommittee version of H.R. 2470 ~— that is, increasing the cap and
stating it in terms of visits, while maintaining 50% coinsurance —— probably would be
best approach. Such an expansion is the simplest to understand and administer, permits
use of carriers' existing utilization control mechanisms, and emphasizes protection for
higher-cost patients while retaining reasonable coinsurance levels. We also support
consideration of replacing the inpatient psychiatric lifetime day limit with an
appropriate annual limit in order to provide better protection from ¢atastrophic
expenses. Finally, if the expanded benefits are to be fully financed by beneficiaries, we

recommend consideration of income-related financing options.
We would be pleased to provide any further information on our Medicare and private
business experience with administering mental health benefits and look forward to

working with you on this important issue.

934:6/16/81
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Senator MiTcHELL. Thank you, Mr. Spielman.

Senator Durenberger, do you have any questions?

Senator DURENBERGER. No. I just want to express my personal
appreciation to each of the witnesses and the associations for the
thoroughness of their statements, and for the support that over the
years they have given to mental health, which just now hopefully
is about to bear fruit. So I am simply grateful to you and I am
grateful just to be here to have the opportunity to be able to facili-
tatehthis very realistic clarification of benefit. Thank you very
much.

Senator MitcHELL. Well I share Senator Durenberger’s gratitude
and we look forward to working with all of you on this important
i?s?ie én the near future. Thank you very much. The hearing is con-
cluded.

[Whereupon, at 12:50 p.m., the hearing was concluded.]

[By direction of the chairman the following communications were
rnade a part of the hearing record:]
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NATIONAL FEDERATION OF
SOCIETIES FOR CLINICAL SOCIAL WORK, INC.

The Nutional Federation of Socleties for Clinical Social
Work is pleased to have this opportunity to presen: the views of
the clinical social work profession on issues relating to mental
health coverage under the Medicare program. The National Federa-
tion represents thousands of clinical social workers around the
country who are engaged in providing mental health services to
inlividuals, families and groups, in private practice, ih group
practice settings, in HMOs, PPOs, EPOs, IPAs, in public and pri-
vate clinics and agencies, and in hospitals.
IHE NEED FOR_IMPROVED OUTPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH
COVERAGE _UNDER MEDICARE

Medicare's outpatient mental health benefit may have been
adequate when it was established over 20 years ago, when we knew
very little about mental illness, but our understanding and
treatment of mental health disorders have improved dramatically
since then. Yet the amount that Medicare will pay for outpatient
treatment of mental health problems has remained the same, even in

the face of 20 years of inflation.

By limiting coverage to $250 a year for outpatient mental
health treatment, Medi-are clearly discriminates against mental
illness by treating it as less significant than physical ailments.
This difference in coverage of physical and mental illness should
not be tolerated any longer. Our progressive understanding of

health in recent years has increased our awareness that physical
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and mental health are inextricably connected. Studies have con-
sistently shown that many patlents going to physicians*' offices
for physical complaints have emoticnal and psychological probiams

which either have caused or acgravated the physical condition.

We urge Congress to end the discriminatory treatmen! of
mental illness under Medicare and enact a meaningful increase in
the outpatient mental health benefit. This year, the House Ways
and Means and Energy and Commerce Committees have voted to in-
csease the outpatient mental health benefit by raising the current
annual outpatient }imit from $250 to $1,000. We applaud the
efforts of both committees to improve mental health coverage under
Medicare; however, we suggest that the dollar limit be changed to
a visit 1limit in order to avoid the need to amend the law as the
purchasing power of the dollar 1limit fluctuates over the years.
Furthermore, in order to maximize the cost-effectiveness of the
covered service, we urge that benefiriaries be given freedom of
choice, so they can obtain covered services from any qualified
mental health professional without regard to professional disci
pline. Specifically, we endorse the following approach to out-
patient benefits, proposed recently by the Mental Health Law
Project with the support of numerous mental health organizations:

“Twenty-five visits to an eligible mental
health professional for individual, group or
family, or other form of psychotherapy should
be covered. The eligible professional should
be determined by state licensure and profes-
sional practice laws. Both public and pri-

vate individual and group practice arrange-
ments would be 2ligible to provide services.
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MEDICARE'S RESTRICTIYVE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

Although an increase in the outpatient mental health bene-
£it would do much to help some elderly beneficiaries pay for
needed mental health services, as well as begin to bridge the gap
in coverage between physica! and mental health care, it would do
little to make mental health services available to a large segment
of the Medicare population unless it is coupled with freedom of
choice among qualified providers. The mental health delivery sys-
tem in the United States has grown Up over the years around the
availability of a number of qualified mental health professionals,
without regard to the discipline of the provider, yet Medicare
currently will only pay for services rendered by a physician. The
law does not even require that the services be performed by a
trained mental health professional -- any physician will do. 1iIn
this respect, the 20-year old Medicare program is out of step with
the realities of today's mental health delivery system, which is
universally recognized to consist of four “core disciplines® --
psychiatry, psychology, clinicai social work, and psychiatric
nursing. Consequently, ~any of the nation's elderly are often
denied the freedom to select from a range of qualified providers
simply because the therapist of their choice may be a clinical
social worker and is excluded from tite Medicare financing struc-

ture.
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UNMET™ MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS OF THE ELDERLY

|
|
Several years ago, the President's Commission on Mental :
Lealth conducted an analysis of governmental policy in the area of !
mental health service dellivery, with particular focus en under- ' |
served populations. Many older Americans were found to have in-
sufficient access to services or to personnel trained to respond .
to the special needs of the elderly.l/ Moreover, the Commission
found that the elderly have a greater need for mental health
services than the general population (up to 25% of older persons

are estimated to have significant mental health problems).2/

Since then, other studies and reports have confirmed the
tindings of the President's Commission. A recent General Account-
ing Office report determined once again that the elderly do not
have adequate access to mental health services.3/ And a 1984
study by the Department of Health and Human Services found that
less than 4 percent of psychiatrists' visits are p.ovided to per-
sons over age 65, even though this age group accounts for almost
20 percent of off.ce visits general'ly.4/ Further, the study docu-
ments the fact that four out of £ive persons age 65 or older with

a mental illness are <een by non-psychiatrist physicians.5/

THE NEED FOR FREEDOM OF CHOICE

Insufficient access to mental health services and to
trained mental health professionals led the President's Commission
to recommend that Medicare and other publicly financed mental

health service programs should provide direct reimbursement to all
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independent qualified mental health professionals including the
four core disciplines, who meet the requisite standards of educa-
tion, experience and professional licensure/certification.§/ The
fundamental point made by the Commission was that federal financ-
ing mechanisns should be based upon the appropriateness of care,

not the discipline of the provider.7/

It is particularly ironic that Congress, on the one hand,
has appropriated funds over the years to train clinical social
workers, under such programs as the National Mental Eealth Act of
1946, and, on the other hand, has excluded them from participation
in the Hedicare delivery system:

". . . [&] major barrier to out™atient care for popu-

lations with special needs is in_josed by the public

mechanisme for financing their mental health care --

Medicare and Medicaid . . . . Federal financing

mechanisms have often worked at cross-purposes to

federally initiated service delivery programs."8/

It is also ironic that at the same time Congress has guar=-
anteed the patient through the Medicare law "freedom of choice" in
selectiag a provider, it has restricted that choice to only one

class of provider -~ physicians.

The President's Commission on Mental Health has not been
alone in urging that the mental health delivery structure allow
the consumer "freedom of choice" in selecting among qualified pro=-
viders. Several years ago, Lewin and Associates, Inc. published
the results of a study prepared for the Federal Trade Commission
on competition among health practitioners, which examined the in-

fluence of the medical profession on the health manpower market.
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The study conciuded that one of the principal ways to broaden con~
sumer choice, and to diminish the monopoly power of physicians,
was to allow consumers the freedom to select among 2 variety of
nealth professionals. "If carefully designed, a system based on
broadened choice could preserve professional competency while in-
creasing competition among providers on the basis of the service
they provide, quality, and price."9/ The study warned that "un-
reasonable resistance to change in present manpower arrangements
has, in some cases, prevented appropriate utilization of health

resources ang possibly raised the cost of care.”10/

There is no basis for concern that expanding the provider
pool to include qualified non-physician mental health profes-
sionals will adversely affect therapeutic outcome. To the con-
trary, research has demonstrated there is no measurable difference

in outcome on the basis of provider discipline.ll/

"Freedom of choice” can be a critical element in the
patient’s acknowledgment that he or she needs treatment, in the
patient's actual resort to treatment, and in the relationship of
trust and confidence in the psychotherapist necessary to make that
treatment successful. Medicare beneficiaries should not be denied
the opportunity to select from a range of qualified providers
merely because the therapist of their choice is a clinical social
worker, and not a physician.

THE FEHBP AND CHAMPUS EXPERIENCE

Other federally funded health insurance programs have rec=-

ognized the importance of utilizing the services of clinical
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social wrkers and other qualified non-physician mental health

T

professionals. A 1986 study conducted by the Office of Personnel
Management examined the effects of providing direct reimbursement
to clinical social workers and other non-physician providers under
the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHBP). The re-~
sults of the study were encouraging. OPM concluded there was no
basis to anticipate adverse impact on cost or quality of care from
mandating coverage of non-physician providers, including clinical

social workers.l12/

The CHAMPUS program reports a similar experience. In 1980
Congress directed CHAMPUS to conduct a demonstration project by
including clinical social workers as independent providers of
covered services for a period of two years, in order to assess the
impact on cost and utilization. In 1982, following the experi-
mental period, Congress authorized continuation of the independent
provider status, based on the finding from the demonstration
project that "no quality of care problems have arisen, and re-
imbursement of clinical social workers costs less than the tradi-

tional physician gate-keeper approach.l3/

COST OFFSETS OF MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT

In past years, some opponents of freedom of choice have
argued that expanding the available provider base will cause a
large increase in utilization, at additional cost to the govern-
ment. Even if utilization were to increase with the inclusion of
clinical social workers in the Medicare provider base, overall

. program costs would not necessarily increase proportionately. To
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the contrary, the evidence strongly suggests that increased utili-

zation would be offset by corresponding cost savings.

For example, the President's Commission on Mental Health
concluded that increased utilization of mental health services
yields decreased utilization of (more expensive) doctors, hospi-
tals and surgery. "[A]s a group, this research is most striking",
the Commission reported. "Research from health maintenance or-
ganizations (HMO's), from industrial programs, and from regular
health insurance plans suggests that providing outpatient mental
health services can reduce overall health services utilization and

overall health costs.l4/

The Commission also determined that as many as 60 percent
or more of physician visits are from sufferers of emotional dis-
tress rather than diagnosable illness.l5/ A similar f£inding was
reported by the Department of Health and Human Services, in its

study report titled "The Hidden Mental Health Network."16/

An article published by Jones and Vischi of the Alcohol,
Drug Abuse and Mental Health Administration, summarized the re-
sults of twelve separate studies which have demonstrated that the
cost of providing mental health services was offset by a sig-

nificant decline in medical utilization.l7/

One of the most recent studies relating to the offset ef-
fect of mental health treatment on medical costs is a 1983 study
on outpatient mental health treatment following the onset of a

chronic disease. The findings indicate that outpatient psycho-
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therapy beginning within one year of the diagnosis of one of four
chronic diseases is associated with reduced charges for med}cal
services by the third year following the diagnosis.l8/ The
authors conclude that the study "adds weight to the conclusion
drawn from the reviews of the scientific literature that the in-
clusion of outpatient psychotherapy in medical care systems can
improve the quality and appropriateness of care and also lower
costs of providing it."19/

CONCLUSION

It is clear that the cost of leaving the mental health
needs of our €lderly unattended@ are enormous both in human and
social terms. From the standpoint of just the dollars and cents
involved, it has to cost more to keep paying the physician,
laboratory, x-ray, surgical and hospital bills to treat the symp-
toms of underlying mental and emotional problems which can be
more effectively (and inexpensively) dealt with by a trained

mental health professional -- physician or non-physician.

It is time that benefit levels be updated to account for
decades of inflation, and that the Medicare delivery system rec-
ognize as independent providers clinical social workers and other
qualified non-physician mental health professionals who are cur-
rently providing the majority of the mental health services

throughout the country.
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